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Financial Highlights
Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited
Investor Information

BALANCE SHEET

Share Capital 53,299 9,779 9,779 9,779 9,779
Share holders' equity 20,936 1,834 (29) (14,279) (8,667)
Property, plant and equipment 73,047 12,581 13,716 14,928 17,625
Long term investment 16,932 22,661 5,729 5,729 5,729
Long term loan, advances and rec 1,778 - 16,931 - -
Stock in trade 12,583 7,332 4,860 8,778 5,704
Trade debts 4,858 8,287 9,349 10,245 12,124
Total current assets 20,799 20,642 18,549 38,589 20,537
Total current liabilities 56,565 39,179 36,376 37,786 29,470
Short term borrowings 3,372 6,594 738 6,402 6,800
Current portion of non-current liabilities 7,932 5,442 3,729 2,655 1,636
Non-current liabilities 31,355 10,160 13,372 16,216 17,848

----Rs. In million----
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

9,779

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Net sales 88,573 77,702 94,807 92,545 66,187
Cost of sales 83,957 73,419 89,941 92,136 66,111
Gross pro t / (loss) 4,616 4,283 4,866 409 76
Operating pro t / (loss) 3,707 3,253 2,935 (2,695) 751
Financial charges 2,261 2,309 2,758 2,793 2,645
Pro t / (Loss) before taxation 1,268 718 (151) (6,325) (2,085)
Pro t / (Loss) after taxation 2,122 1,367 72 (5,937) (2,259)

(6,723)
18,373

5,729
-

2,956
9,729

14,483
37,177

7,650
2,442
2,574

19,453
21,170
(1,717)

(233)
2,965

(3,197)
(3,078)
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Financial Highlights
Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited
Investor Information

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Pro tability Ratios
Gross Pro t % 5.21% 5.51% 5.13% 0.45% 0.12%
Pro t before Tax % 1.43% 0.92% -0.16% -6.83% -3.15%
Net Pro t % 2.40% 1.76% 0.08% -6.42% -3.41%
EBITDA Margin to sales % 7.31% 5.73% 4.44% -1.83% 2.67%
Return on equity % 8.18% 20.86% 1.39% -117.52% 66.23%

Liquidity Ratios
Current Ratio Times 0.37 0.53
Quick / Acid Test Ratio Times 0.15 0.34

Activity / Turnover Ratios
Inventory turnover Days 43.29 30.31
Debtors turnover Days 27.08 41.42
Creditors turnover Days 147.49 141.72
Inventory turnover Times 8.43 12.04
Debtors turnover Times 13.48 8.81
Creditors turnover Times 2.47 2.58
Total assets turnover ratio Times 0.78 1.39
Fixed assets turnover ratio Times 1.21 6.18

Financial Leverage Ratios
Interest coverage ratio Times 1.64 1.41
Debt to equity ratio Times 2.04 12.10

Investment / Market Ratios
Earnings per share Rs. 0.40 1.40

0.51
0.38

27.67
37.72

119.75
13.19
9.68
3.05
1.71
6.91

1.06
(615.14)

0.07

1.02
0.78

28.69
44.11
95.39
12.72

8.27
3.83
1.56
6.20

(0.96)
(1.77)

(6.07)

0.70
0.50

23.90
60.30

111.00
11.60

5.46
3.29
1.51
3.76

0.28
(3.03)

(2.31)

-8.82%
-16.44%
-15.82%

4.76%
-270.00%

0.39
0.31

60.90
153.70
446.60

6.58
2.00
0.82
0.50
1.06

(0.08)
(2.21)

(3.15)
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Chairman’s Review Report
For the year ended June 30, 2017 
Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to present the Annual Report of the Company
together with the audited, stand alone and consolidated, nancial statements and auditors’
report thereon for the year ended 30th June, 2017.    

During the year, the Honourable High Court of Sindh at Karachi approved the merger of the
Company with its parent company, Byco Oil Pakistan Limited, and subsidiary company, Byco
Terminals Pakistan Limited with e ect from the close of business at June 30, 2016. Your
Company now, represents the country’s largest re ning complex of 155,000 barrels per day
(bpd) with backward and forward integration in the form of Single Point Mooring (SPM) facility
and oil marketing license respectively.    

 

  
During the year under review, the Company reported a pro t after taxation of Rs. 2.1 billion as
compared to a pro t after taxation of Rs. 1.4 billion last year. This was due to better re ning
and marketing margins, advantageous pricing in product import and better working capital
management. 
 
The Company did not installed Diesel Hydro Desulphurisation unit (DHDS) by the target date of
June 30, 2017 however, e orts are underway on priority basis.   
 
The Company issued AAA rated Sukuk certi cates of Rs.3.2 billion to raise capital for a few of
the expansion plans of the Company to improve e ciency and performance. We are thankful to
sukuk investors for showing con dence in our Company by over subscribing the issue.  
 The Board acknowledges the e orts of the management and specially the Projects team
installing the Crude Charge Heater in record time. With the combined e orts of the
management team the re ning complex 2, after completion of the furnace with state of the art
control features, became operational in rst week of August 2017.    
 
 
Re neries being capital intensive in nature requires signi cant amount of investment for their
upgradation / modernization. The Government, however, has levied income tax if the pro ts
are not distributed. We are of the view that the decision to invest further in the business or to
pay dividends is shareholders prerogative and should not be made mandatory. The decision
about distribution of pro ts would be made with the consent of shareholders and in the better
interest of overall business.      

The overall performance of the Board of Directors remained good through out the year. The
Board is composed of a mix of Directors in terms of relevant experience and skills and its
Committees have been operating e ciently. Current year’s nancial results and bringing back
the 120,000 bpd re nery into operations is a clear indication of the e ective role played by the
Board in achieving Company’s objectives.    

 
 On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank all the stakeholders for their trust and support.
I am con dent that the Company has all the ingredients necessary to achieve the expectations
of all its stakeholders.     
 
 

Akhtar Hussain Malik
Chairman
Karachi
December 20, 2017 
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Directors’ Report for the year ended
June 30, 2017

In the name of Allah the Most Merciful and the Most Benevolent.

The Directors of your Company are pleased to present the Annual Report of the Company 
together with the audited, stand alone and consolidated, nancial statements and auditors’ 
report thereon for the year ended 30th June, 2017. 

The declining trend of international crude oil prices came to an end when the lowest price of 
US $ 29 a barrel was achieved last year in January 2016 after which it immediately started 
recovering. In current year, an increasing trend was observed however, there were uctuations 
in prices throughout the year. An average increase of US $ 7 a barrel was noted in the price of 
crude oil compared to the last year thereby creating a challenge for the oil companies.   

Pakistan economy grew by 5.3% in current year which is the highest growth in past 10 years. 
The growing economy coupled with the continuous decline in oil prices contributed signi cantly 
in the volumetric growth of oil consumption in Pakistan. In current year, oil consumption 
increased by about 10% most of which came from growth in consumption of Motor Spirit (MS) 
followed by Diesel (HSD) and Furnace Oil (FO). Availability of cheaper fuel, growth in number of 
vehicles being produced locally as well as imported and development of infrastructure are the 
main factors contributing towards the increased consumption of oil in the country. However, 
subsequent to the end of the year, there was a signi cant reduction in the consumption of FO 
by the power sector thereby posing a threat to all the re neries in the country.  The oil industry 
is pursuing the Government for an amicable solution of the issue. 

 25

 30
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 40
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 50
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Crude Oil Price in US $ / Barrel 
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Directors’ Report for the year ended
June 30, 2017

COMPANY PERFORMANCE
During the year, the Honourable High Court of Sindh at Karachi approved the merger of the
Company with its parent company, Byco Oil Pakistan Limited (BOPL), and subsidiary company,
Byco Terminals Pakistan Limited (BTPL) with e ect from the close of business at June 30, 2016.
Accordingly, nancial statements for the current year includes results of operations of the
merged entity however, comparative numbers of prior years have not been restated as per the
accounting requirement of pooling of interest method.      

Your Company now, represents the country’s largest re ning complex of 155,000 barrels per
day (bpd) with backward and forward integration in the form of Single Point Mooring (SPM)
facility and oil marketing license respectively.  

We are pleased to inform that the Company maintained its pursuit of growth in higher margin
products and was able to increase sales volume of MS by 54% while maintaining the volume of
HSD at current level. This was achieved through the import of MS and HSD at the SPM facility of
the Company which greatly helped in bringing operational e ciencies together with reduction
in cost and time. The sale volume of FO however was reduced as the Company, foreseeing the
impeding challenges, did away with the import of FO in current year. As a result, the Company
recorded gross sales of Rs. 115.4 billion in current year compared to Rs. 113.6 billion last year.       

For the rst time in Pakistan,
the Company brought crude
vessel of over 102,000 M. Tons
at its SPM facility. This was the
largest crude vessel ever berth
in any port of Pakistan. With
larger vessels, the Company
saves substantial amount on
freight costs. In all, 60 vessels
berthed at the SPM carrying
crude and petroleum products,
proving the e ciency and
reliability of Byco SPM.
Currently the SPM is handling             

about 14% of country’s crude oil imports, which will increase with the commencement of
operations of Company’s larger re nery.   

The Company earned gross pro t of Rs. 4.6 billion in current year as compared to Rs. 4.3 billion
last year which is primarily attributed to better re ning & marketing margins and import of
products at competitive pricing.    

As mentioned earlier, the pro t and loss account for the current year includes results of
operations of BOPL and BTPL as well whereas comparative gures represent results of
operations of BPPL only. As a result of this, administrative expenses appear to have increase
signi cantly whereas infact these have remained within budget.  The Company earned
operating pro t of Rs. 3.7 billion compared to Rs. 3.2 billion earned last year. The Company
remained under the regime of minimum tax on turnover basis in the current year as well.       
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Directors’ Report for the year ended
June 30, 2017

 (233) 

 751  

 (2,695) 

 2,935  
 3,253  

 3,707  

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Operating Pro t (Rs. Millions) 

The Company continued to increase its penetration in retail sector through its marketing arm
supported by 300 retail stations across the country. The deployment of retail stations and
development of storage facilities at key consumption areas is the main focus of the marketing
arm which has contributed towards the pro tability and operational exibility. Subsequent to
the end of the year, the Company commenced operations of its terminal at Mehmoodkot.    

Based on above results, pro t after tax for the year amounted to Rs. 2.1 billion (2016: Rs. 1.4
billion) and earnings per share for the year was Rs. 0.40 compared to Rs. 1.40 per share last
year. On a consolidated basis, the Company’s Group earnings per share amounted to Rs. 0.26
(2016: Rs. 0.40). Despite a 50% increase in pro t after tax, the earnings per share have declined
due to the issuance of 5.1 billion shares during the year in respect of the merger of BOPL and
BTPL. It is expected that with the operations of larger re nery, there would be improvement in
earnings per share in future. Byco Isomerisation Pakistan (Private) Limited (BIPL), the wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, incurred a net loss of Rs. 924 million primarily due to the
depreciation on xed assets. It is expected that once in operations, BIPL will generate
signi cant pro ts. There has been a delay in payment of Government dues (as mentioned in
note 23 to the nancial statements) due to delay in recovery / utilization of funds for clearing
some old outstanding government dues.             

For a more comprehensive look at the nancials of your Company over the last six years, refer
to page 8.  
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Directors’ Report for the year ended
June 30, 2017

In addition, the auditors have included a paragraph in their report whereby they have
highlighted the use of going concern assumption followed in preparation of the nancial
statements. Their observation is based on some negative indicators like accumulated losses
and net current liability position however, the nancial statements have been prepared on the
going concern basis for the reasons mentioned in note 2 to the nancial statements.    

The Board conforms the management’s assessment in this respect and is of the view that these
negative conditions are temporary and would reverse in foreseeable future. Therefore, the use
of going concern assumption is justi ed.   

RESUMPTION OF OPERATIONS OF THE LARGER REFINERY

 

We are pleased to inform that the Company started operating its larger re nery of 120,000 bpd
capacity from August 5th, 2017 with its new Crude Charge Heater / Furnace. The re nery was
operated successfully without any operating hindrances and products were supplied to all the
major Oil Marketing Companies (OMCs).     

The Company is working to make its HSD product Euro II compliant for which necessary
arrangements are being made. As per the current Government approved pricing formula, the
Company would get lower price of HSD till the time it gets its HSD product Euro II compliant.   

REASONS FOR NOT DECLARING DIVIDEND
Considering the Company’s nancial commitments, the Directors do not recommend any
ap propriations for the year ended 30th June 2017. 

AUDITORS’ OBSERVATION

BOPL, in prior years, had included certain expenses in cost of the plant & machinery as, in
management view, all such costs relate to the re nery construction and its trial run. The
Company considers the above as directly attributable to the construction of the re nery and
hence, the same have been made part of the cost of its plant & machinery in respect of which
auditors have expressed their reservation.    
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Directors’ Report for the year ended
June 30, 2017

 
During the year the Company set its
focus on EHS Resources Development &
Sustainability; Safe Installation of new
Equipment and Turnaround of both Re neries.     

Safety Perception & Gap Analysis
Surveys were carried out during the
year which was based on the
methodology provided by world
renowned safety consultant. This was
followed by EHS organization
restructuring and appointment of EHS      

Professionals at Re nery Site. Next phase encompassed EHS policy formulation encouraging
Injury, Illness and Near miss reporting.  

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 
Byco as a responsible corporate citizen has 
demonstrated its social responsibility 
particularly towards its neighboring 
communities in the area adjoining its 
re nery. Providing job opportunities, 
social services, engaging the youth 
positively through sports and materially 
and nancially supporting the 
underserved communities near our 
re nery are some of the key areas which 
remain our focus throughout the year. 
Some of the speci c contributions are: 

Financial support for sports to induce a 
healthy competitive spirit among youth. 

Regular repair and maintenance of 
road infrastructure to facilitate the 
neighboring villages. 

Rehabilitation of people of the area 
su ering from natural calamities.  
Job opportunities to skilled, semi-skilled/ unskilled human resource from the villages to
chart a path out of poverty.  
Award of contracts in and outside our re nery to locals for their economic empowerment. 
Medical camp for women & children to educate and address hygiene and health issues.  
Provision of free ambulance service to villagers and providing hospitalization as required in 
case of emergencies. 
Financial assistance for projects facilitating locals, including provision of a solar powered 
tubewell to provide clean drinking water for the village people. 
Educational Support: Repair and renovation of school and mosques as a standing obligation. 
Provision of fresh water supply to surrounding villages from Byco sponsored wells.
Cleanliness of Hub City under the banner of District Government.
Periodic repair and maintenance of nearby Pirkus Road. 

ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH, SAFETY AND SECURITY (EHSS)

Employee Skill, Knowledge and Competence were improved by introducing Certi cation Process
and EHS Trainings. Further, Safe Work practices including permit to work system have also been
revamped.  
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Employee Health & Environmental Conservation maintained by a priority. Environment
monitoring plan and short comings in compliance to regulations was assessed. Additionally,
Employees Annual Health Assessment and Employees Vaccination were carried out during the year.     

Pre commissioning Hazard Review was conducted to ensure all Environment, Health & Safety
considerations are ful lled before inducting new equipment in service. Daily tool box talks were
held to improve hazard communication and awareness among the Company and the
Contractors’ work force.     

A total of 3.2 million safe man hours were achieved during the year. Total Recordable Injury
Rate (TRIR) for the year was 0.81 per man hours per 100 employees.  

CONTRIBUTION TO THE NATIONAL EXCHEQUER
During the current year, your Company contributed an amount of Rs. 27 billion to the national
exchequer on account of direct and indirect taxes and levies. In addition the Company brought
valuable foreign exchange of approximately US$ 48 million into the economy, through the
exports of petroleum product thereby contributing towards reducing burden on the country’s
balance of payment.  

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company has been and remains committed to the conduct of its business in line with the
code of corporate governance and the listing regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange. As
required by the Code of Corporate Governance, following is the statement of compliance with
the Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework of the Code:   

The Directors are pleased to con rm that:
The nancial statements, prepared by the Management of the Company, present its
state of a airs fairly, the results of its operations, cash ows and changes in equity.  
Proper books of accounts have been maintained in the manner required under the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017).   
Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of

nancial statements. Accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent
judgments.   
International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been
followed in preparation of nancial statements and deviation if any, has been adequately
disclosed.   
The system of internal control is sound in design and has been e ectively implemented
and monitored. 
During the year seven meetings of the Board of Directors were held and attendance by
the directors was as follows:  

Name of Director
Number of 

Meetings Attended 
Mr. Amir Abbassciy
Mr. Muhammad Mahmood Hussain
Mr. Akhtar Hussain Malik
Mr. Syed Arshad Raza
Mr. Omar Khan Lodhi
Mr. Chaudhary Khaqan Saadullah Khan
Mr. Mohammad Wasi Khan (Resigned on 30th December 2016)
Mr. Muhammad Raza Hasnani (Resigned on 21st November 2016)
Mr. Nayyer Hussain (Appointed on 22nd December 2016)  

7
7 

 4 
6 

 - 
 6 

4 
1
2 

Directors’ Report for the year ended
June 30, 2017
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Directors’ Report for the year ended
June 30, 2017

The Board of Directors gave leave of absence to those directors who were unable to attend. 

The Board places on record its appreciation for the valuable services rendered by outgoing
directors on the Board.  

Audit Committee  
The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year. Attendance by each member was as follows: 

Meetings Attended
Muhammad Mahmood Hussain 4 
Syed Arshad Raza 4 
Mr. Chaudhary Khaqan Saadullah Khan (from 22nd December 2016) 2 
Muhammad Raza Hasnani (upto 22nd November, 2016) 1 

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee  
The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee did not hold any meeting during the year.  

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
The pattern of shareholding and additional information as at 30th June 2017 appears on page
100 of the Annual Report. 

Byco Industries Incorporated, based in Mauritius, holds 91.83% shares, nancial institutions
and banks hold 4.66% shares, and 3.51% shares are held by individuals.  

No trading in the shares of the Company was done by the directors, executives or their
spouses and minor children during the year.  

VALUE OF INVESTMENT IN POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT FUND  
The value of investment of provident fund on the basis of unaudited accounts is as under:  

2017 2016 
As at June 30 (Rs. in ‘000) 213,164 111,908 

EXTERNAL AUDITORS  
The auditors Messrs EY Ford Rhodes Chartered Accountants retired and o ered themselves for
reappointment. The Audit Committee has recommended the reappointment of Messrs EY Ford
Rhodes Chartered Accountants as auditors for the year ending June 30, 2018.   

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
The Board wishes to express appreciation and place on record its gratitude for the co-operation
extended to your Company by Government of Pakistan and strategic partners including nancial
institutions, vendors, suppliers, customers and shareholders of your Company.  

We would also like to thank our dedicated employees for their commitment towards
sustainable operations. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Amir Abbassicy
Chief Executive O cer

 Syed Arshad Raza
Director 

Karachi
December 20, 2017
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Statement of Compliance
With the code of Coprporate Governance
Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited
Year ended 30th June 2017

The Company has applied the principles contained in the Code of Corporate Governance (the
“Code”) in the following manner: 

1. The Company encourages representation of independent non-executive directors
and directors representing minority interests on its Board of Directors. As at 30th June
2017, the Board consisted of: 

Independent Director Muhammad Mahmood Hussain

Executive Director Amir Abbassciy

Non-Executive Directors Akhtar Hussain Malik

Syed Arshad Raza

Nayyer Hussain

Omar Khan Lodhi

Chaudhary Khaqan Saadullah Khan

The independent director meets the criteria of independence under clause 5.19.1(b) of the Code. 

2. The directors have con rmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven
listed companies, including this Company.

3. All the resident directors of the Company are registered taxpayers and none of them has
defaulted in the payment of any loan to a banking company, a Development Financial Institution
or a Non-Banking Financial Institution or, being a Broker of a stock exchange, has been declared
as a defaulter by that stock exchange. 

4. During the year, two casual vacancies occurred on the Board, which were created by the
resignations of Mr. Muhammad Raza Hasnani on 21st November 2016 and Mr. Muhammad Wasi Khan
on 22nd December 2016. Mr. Nayyer Hussain was appointed as a director to ll the casual vacancy
on 22nd December 2016 and Mr. Amir Abbassciy was appointed as the Chief Executive O cer to ll
the casual vacancy on 1stJanuary 2017.     

5.        The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.  

6. The Board has developed a vision / mission statement and overall corporate strategy. The Board
approved signi cant policies as required by the Code. A complete record of particulars of signi cant
policies along with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained. 

7. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions,
including the appointment and determination of remuneration and the terms and conditions of
employment of the Chief Executive O cer,other executive and non-executive directors, have
been taken by the Board / Shareholders.  

8. During the year the Board met seven times. Meetings of the Board were presided over by the
Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the Board for this purpose. Written notices
of the Board meetings, along with the agendas and working papers, were circulated at least seven
days before the meetings and the minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated. 

9. The training of the directors is an ongoing process and the directors, on a regular basis,
are provided with and updated on relevant laws, codes, and guidelines on best practices
of good corporate governance. Most of the directors are professionals and senior executives
having wide experience and awareness of the duties and responsibilities of the directors.
Two directors have acquired certi cation under Directors Training Program (DTP), while
one director possesses the requisite criteria of education and experience as laid down in
the Code for an exemption from certi cation under any directors’ training program.
Registration of other directors is under way and DTP certi cation will be  completed
according to the requirement speci ed under the Code.     

Category Names
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Statement of Compliance
With the code of Coprporate Governance
Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited
Year ended 30th June 2017

10. During the year, the Board has approved the appointment of Mr. Naeem Asghar
Malik, as the Chief Financial O cer of the Company as of 1st January 2017 in place of
Mr. Asad Azhar Siddiqui, on the existing terms and conditions of his employment with
the Company. There were no change in the positions of Company Secretary and Head
of Internal Audit.   

11. The directors' report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the
requirements of the Code and fully describes the salient matters required to be
disclosed.

12. The nancial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by Chief Executive
O cer and Chief Financial O cer before approval of the board.

13. The directors, Chief Executive O cer and other executives do not hold any interest
in the shares of the Company, other than that disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

14. The Company has complied with all the corporate and nancial reporting requirements
 of the Code.

15. The Board has formed an Audit Committee, comprising three members, of whom
two are non-executive directors and the Chairman of the Committee is an 
independent director. 

16. The meetings of the Audit Committee were held at least once every quarter prior to
approval of interim and nal results of the Company and as required by the Code.
The terms of reference of the Committee have been formed and advised to the
Committee for compliance.

17. The Board has formed a Human Resource and Remuneration Committee, comprising
three members, all of whom are non-executive directors, including the chairman of the
Committee.   

18. The Board has set up an e ective internal audit function and that is involved in the
 Internal Audit on full time basis relating to business and other a airs of the Company. 

19.    The statutory auditors of the Company have con rmed that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the quality control review program of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), that they or any of the partners of the

rm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that
the rm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.  

20.    The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed
to provide other services except in accordance with the Listing Regulations and the
auditors have con rmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

21. The‘ Closed Period’ prior to the announcement of interim and nal results, and
business decisions that may materially a ect the market price of the Company’s shares,
was determined and intimated to the directors, employees and the Pakistan Stock
Exchange.

22. Material / price sensitive information was disseminated among all market participants
at once through the Pakistan Stock Exchange. 

23. The Company has complied with the requirements relating to maintenance of register of
persons having access to inside information by designated senior management o cer in
a timely manner and maintained proper record including basis for inclusion or exclusion
of names of persons from the said list.   

24.       We con rm that all other material principles enshrined in the Code have been complied with.

Amir Abbassicy
Chief Executive O cer
December 20th 2017
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We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of
Corporate Governance (the Code) prepared by the Board of Directors of Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited
(the Company) for the year ended 30 June 2017 to comply with the requirements of Rule Book of Pakistan
Stock Exchange Limited Chapter 5, Clause 5.19.24(b) of the Code of Corporate Governance, where the
Company is listed.   

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively veri ed, whether the
Statement of Compliance re ects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Code
and  report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Code. A review is
limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the
Company to comply with the Code.  

As part of our audit of the nancial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting
and internal control systems su cient to plan the audit and develop an e ective audit approach. We are not
required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls,
or to form an opinion on the e ectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance
procedures and risks.    

The Code requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors’ for their review and approval its related party 
transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in
arm‘s length transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm’s length price and recording proper
justi cation for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured compliance
of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine whether
the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.       

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately re ect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the best
practices contained in the Code, as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30June 2017.  

Review Report to the Members on
Statements of Compliance
With the Code of Corporate Governance

Chartered Accountants
Audit Engangement Partner:
Riaz A. Rehman Chamdia
Karachi

December 20, 2017



2017



We have audited the annexed unconsolidated balance sheet of Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited
as at 30 June 2017 and the related unconsolidated pro t and loss account,unconsolidated statement
of comprehensive income, unconsolidated cash ow statement and unconsolidated statement of
changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we state
that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.    

It is the responsibility of the Company’s management to establish and maintain a system of internal
control, and prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved
accounting standards and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.   

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the above said statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting policies and signi cant estimates made by management, as
well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due veri cation, we report that:      

a) Certain expenses aggregating to Rs. 4,192.303 million have been capitalized by the
Company which do not meet the criteria for the recognition of assets and have not been
incurred in respect of qualifying assets. These expenses include exchange losses and
interest expenses, aggregating to Rs. 1,493.232 million, incurred on certain foreign currency
borrowings, equity arrangement fee and shares issuance cost aggregating to Rs. 620.845
million, production loss of Rs. 546.490 million incurred on crude oil used by the Company,
loss of Rs. 772.466 million on the write down of stock in trade item and guaranteed
throughput cost of Rs. 759.270 million.       

Had the above capitalization not been done,the costof property, plant and equipmentand
net equity as of 30 June 2017, would have been lower by Rs. 4,016.929 million and pro t for
the year would have been higher by Rs. 60.199 million.  

b) in our opinion, except for the e ect of the matters stated in paragraph (a) above, proper books
of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984; 

c) in our opinion:

i) except for the e ect of the matters stated in paragraph (a) above, the unconsolidated
balance sheet and unconsolidated pro t and loss account together with the notes
there on have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and 
are in agreement with the books of account and are further in accordance with
accounting policies consistently applied except for changes as stated in note 3.3 to the
unconsolidated nancial statements, with which we concur;  

ii) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company’s
business; and

iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year
were in accordance with the objects of the Company;

Auditors’ Report to the Members
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Auditors’ Report to the Members

d) except for the e ects of the matters stated in paragraph (a), in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us, the unconsolidated balance
sheet, unconsolidated pro t and loss account, unconsolidated statement of comprehensive
income, unconsolidated cash ow statement and unconsolidated statement of changes in
equity together with the notes forming part there of, conform with approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan, and give the information required by the Companies
Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the
state of the Company’s a airs as at 30 June 2017 and of the pro t, its comprehensive
income, cash ows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and        

e) in our opinion, no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980.

f) We draw attention to note 2 to the unconsolidated nancial statements which states that the
current liabilities of the Company exceed its current assets by Rs.35, 765.751 million. This
condition along with other factors stated in the said note indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast signi cant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. Our opinion is not quali ed in respect of this matter.    

Chartered Accountants
Audit Engangement Partner:
Riaz A. Rehman Chamdia
Karachi

December 20, 2017



ANNUAL REPORT    2016/17 24

Note 2017 2016
------- (Rupees in ‘000 ) -------

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 5 73,046,950 12,580,784
Long-term investment 6 16,931,504 22,660,762
Long-term loans and advances 7 1,777,936 -
Long-term deposits 8 16,956 10,278
Deferred taxation 9 1,282,932 -

93,056,278 35,251,824
CURRENT ASSETS

Stores and spares 483,884 293,148
Stock-in-trade 10 12,582,849 7,331,755
Trade debts 11 4,858,318 8,286,897
Loans and advances 12 226,064 3,038,152
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 13 13,173 26,500
Accrued interest 237,951 497,688
Other receivables 14 2,147,976 934,402
Cash and bank balances 15 249,577 233,383

20,799,792 20,641,925

TOTAL ASSETS 113,856,070 55,893,749

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital 16 53,298,847 9,778,587
Merger reserve (21,303,418) -
Accumulated losses (11,820,649) (7,944,149)

20,174,780 1,834,438
Contribution against future issue of shares 17 761,129 -

20,935,909 1,834,438

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT 18 4,999,836 4,720,991

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term nancing and mark-up 19 24,718,476 9,975,319
Loans from related parties 20 6,110,417 -
Long-term deposits 21 172,375 130,978
Deferred liabilities 22 353,514 53,472

31,354,782 10,159,769

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 23 41,875,189 25,976,939
Advance from customers 24 2,472,871 670,263
Accrued mark-up 25 564,213 95,692
Short-term borrowings - secured 26 3,371,784 6,593,696
Current portion of long-term nancing and mark-up 7,932,304 5,442,326
Current portion of liabilities against assets subject to nance lease - 4,362
Taxation – net 349,182 395,273

56,565,543 39,178,551
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 27

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 113,856,070 55,893,749

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these unconsolidated nancial statements.

Unconsolidated Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2017

Syed Arshad Raza
Director

Amir Abbassciy
Chief Executive 

Naeem Asghar Malik
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Unconsolidated Pro t and Loss Account
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 2017 2016
------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------

Turnover – net 28 88,572,580 77,702,167

Cost of sales 29 (83,956,677) (73,419,493)
4,615,903 4,282,674

Gross pro

Administrative expenses 30 (814,827) (561,244)
Selling and distribution expenses 31 (602,701) (808,547)
Other income 32 1,616,382 1,318,577
Other expenses 33 (1,107,223) (978,393)

(908,369) (1,029,607)

Operating pro 3,707,534 3,253,067

Finance costs 34 (2,439,972) (2,535,445)

Pro t before taxation 1,267,562 717,622

Taxation 35 854,675 649,876

Pro t after taxation 2,122,237 1,367,498

Earnings per ordinary share – basic and diluted (Rupees) 36 0.40 1.40

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these unconsolidated nancial statements. 

Syed Arshad Raza
Director

Amir Abbassciy
Chief Executive 

Naeem Asghar Malik
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Unconsolidated Statement of Comprehensive income
For the year ended 30 June 2017

2017 2016
-------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------

Pro t after taxation  2,122,237 1,367,498

Other comprehensive income for the year

Items that may not be reclassi ed subsequently to pro t and 
loss account

Re-measurement loss onde ned bene t obligation (21,505) (348)

Total comprehensive income for the year 2,100,732 1,367,150

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these unconsolidated nancial statements.

Syed Arshad Raza
Director

Amir Abbassciy
Chief Executive 

Naeem Asghar Malik
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Unconsolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 2017 2016
------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Pro t before taxation 1,267,562 717,622
Adjustments for non-cash and other items:

Depreciation 5.1 2,768,850 1,196,719
Finance cost 34 2,439,972 2,535,445
Provision for doubtful debts 11.3 748,522 680,548
Provision for gratuity 22.1.6 54,375 18,990
Interest income 32 (537,134) (514,500)
Gain on disposal of operating xed assets 32 - (2,974)

Net cash ow before working capital changes 6,742,147 4,631,850

Decreace/(Increase) in current assets
Stores and spares (54,420) (13,952)
Stock-in-trade (4,915,388) (2,472,140)
Trade debts 2,044,537 381,952
Loans and advances 533,217 (1,540,842)
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 41,215 (3,312)
Other receivables (1,163,244) 346,098

(3,514,083) (3,302,196)
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities

Trade and other payables 9,331,897 (4,338,832)
Cash generated from / (used in) operations 12,559,961 (3,009,178)

Finance cost paid (273,256) (743,321)
Income taxes paid (412,697) (635,426)
Gratuity paid (15,649) (18,000)
Interest income received 120,552 120,000

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 11,978,911 (4,285,925)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed capital expenditure (3,592,835) (64,191)
Proceeds from disposal of operating xed assets - 5,507
Advance against investment in shares (125,000) -
Long term deposits – net 70,021 21,525

Net cash used in investing activities (3,647,814) (37,159)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long-term nancing 981,121 (1,984,858)
Short term borrowings (10,065,138) 5,856,087
Liabilities against assets subject to nance lease – net (4,362) (2,338)

Net cash (used in) / generated from nancing activities (9,088,379) 3,868,891

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (757,282) (454,193)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 233,383 687,576

Transfer upon merger (826,524) -

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 37 (1,350,423) 233,383

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these unconsolidated nancial statements.

Syed Arshad Raza
Director

Amir Abbassciy
Chief Executive 

Naeem Asghar Malik
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Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Issued, 
subscribed 
and paid-up 

capital

Merger
reserve

Accumulated 
loss

Total

Contribution 
against future 

issue of 
shares

Shareholder’s 
equity and 

contribution 
against future 

issue of shares

------------------------------ (Rupees in ‘000)  -------------------------------------------

Balance as at 01 July 2015 9,778,587 - (9,807,784) (29,197) - (29,197)

Net pro t for the year - - 1,367,498 1,367,498 - 1,367,498

Other comprehensive income
for the year - - (348) ( 348) - (348)

Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 1,367,150 1,367,150 - 1,367,150

Incremental depreciation 
relating to surplus on 
revaluation of property, 
equipment – net of deferred 
tax - - 496,485 496,485 - 496,485

Balance as at 30 June 2016 9,778,587 - (7,944,149) 1,834,438 - 1,834,438

Balance as at 01 July 2016 9,778,587 - (7,944,149) 1,834,438 - 1,834,438

Cancellation of shares held
by BOPL (7,905,101) - - (7,905,101) - (7,905,101)

Issue of shares pursuant
to merger 51,425,361 - - 51,425,361 - 51,425,361

Transfer upon merger - - (6,479,062) (6,479,062) 761,129 (5,717,933)

Merger reserve - (21,303,418) - (21,303,418) - (21,303,418)

Net pro t for the year - - 2,122,237 2,122,237 - 2,122,237

Other comprehensive income
for the year - - (21,505) (21,505) - (21,505)

Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 2,100,732 2,100,732 - 2,100,732

Incremental depreciation 
relating to surplus on 
revaluation of property, 
equipment – net of deferred
tax - - 501,830 501,830 - 501,830

Balance as at 30 June 2017 53,298,847 (21,303,418) (11,820,649) 20,174,780 761,129 20,935,909

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these unconsolidated nancial statements.

Syed Arshad Raza
Director

Amir Abbassciy
Chief Executive 

Naeem Asghar Malik
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2017

1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1 Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited 
company on 09 January 1995 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the repealed Ordinance) and 
was granted a certi cate of commencement of business on 13 March 1995. The shares of the  
Company are listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The registered o ce of the Company is situated at 
The Harbour Front, 9th Floor, Dolmen City, HC-3, Block 4, Marine Drive, Clifton, Karachi –75600,
Pakistan.

The Company currently operates two business segments namely Oil Re nery Business and Petroleum 
Marketing Business. The Company has two re neries with an aggregated capacity of 155,000 bpd.
Petroleum Marketing Business was formally launched in 2007 and has 300 retail outlets across the  
country.

1.2 The Board of Directors (the Board) of the Company in a meeting held on 14 April 2016 considered and
approved in principle merger of the Company, its wholly owned subsidiary Byco Terminals Pakistan 
Limited (BTPL) and its Parent Company, Byco Oil Pakistan Limited (BOPL) in accordance with terms of 
a scheme of arrangement prepared under the provisions of Section 284 to Section 288 of the repealed
Ordinance. During the year, the High Court of Sindh through its order dated 19 January 2017 
sanctioned the scheme. Hence, e ective 01 July 2016, BOPL and BTPL have ceased to exist as legal 
entities.

Pursuant to this sanction, the entire business of BTPL and BOPL including its properties, assets, 
liabilities and rights and obligations vested into the Company. Further, as per the scheme, the 
Company issued and allotted 5,142,536,068 fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10/-each to the 
registered shareholders of BOPL in May 2017 in the ratio of 1.67 ordinary share of the Company for 
each ordinary share of BOPL as per the swap ratio determined by the Company’s Advisor. These 
shares will rank pari passu with the existing shares of the Company. Post merger, the Company is now 
a direct subsidiary of Byco Industries Incorporated (BII), Mauritius (the Parent Company) which holds 
91.83% shares (4,894,520,196 shares) in the Company.

This merger was accounted for in the books using 'pooling of interest' method as it was a business 
combination of entities under common control and therefore, scoped out of IFRS 3 ‘Business 
Combinations’. The net assets of BOPL and BTPL have been incorporated at their net carrying amount 
in the books as on 01 July 2016 and the di erence in value of the net assets and shares as issued 
above has been carried in equity under the head ‘Merger Reserve’. Further, the acquired entities 
results and balance sheet are incorporated prospectively from the date on which the business 
combination occurred. Consequently, these unconsolidated nancial statements do not re ect the 
results of the acquired entities for the period before the transaction occurred and the corresponding 
amounts for the previous year presented are also not restated.

1.3 These unconsolidated nancial statements are the separate nancial statements of the Company in 
which investment in subsidiaries has been accounted for at cost less accumulated impairment losses, 
if any.

2. GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION

As at 30 June 2017, the Company’s accumulated losses amounted to Rs. 11,820.649 million (30 June 
2016: Rs.7,944.149) million. Moreover, current liabilities of the Company exceeded its current assets 
by Rs. 35,765.751 million (30 June 2016: Rs. 18,536.626 million) and as a result of the liquidity 
constraints, the Company may face di culties in meeting the covenants relating to its nancings.

These unconsolidated nancial statements have been prepared using the going concern assumption 
as the management is con dent that all these conditions are temporary, and would reverse in 
foreseeable future due to the reasons given below:

- the Company earned a pro t after tax amounting to Rs. 2,122.237 million (operating pro t: 4.19%)
for the year as compared to Rs. 1,367.498 million (operating pro t: 4.19%) last year, showing
signi cant improvement in the Company’s pro tability as compared to last year;

- the sales volume of high margin products through marketing arm of the Company has increased
by 59% showing improvement in the Company’s performance as compared to last year;
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2017

- the Company has executed a restructuring plan resulting in a merger of BTPL and BOPL with and 
into the Company which has been fully explained in note 1.2 to these unconsolidated nancial 
statements. This arrangement is expected to bring in e ciencies and synergies, which would 
enable the Company to minimize its operational and administrative costs;

- the larger re nery unit of the Company re-commissioned its operations subsequent to the year end 
(August 2017) which is expected to enhance the throughput of the Company from 25,459 barrels 
per day to 155,000 barrels per day in the upcoming years. Further, this will also increase the 
pro tability of the Company in the future years;

- the Company’s Petroleum Marketing Business (PMB) has entered into various fuel supply 
arrangements with di erent marketable sectors such as shipping, power and energy. High margin 
aviation fuel export market has also been tapped through these arrangements. These factors of 
PMB segment have been and are expected to yield signi cant contribution towards the pro tability 
of the Company;

- the Parent Company has also given its commitment to provide nancial support to the  Company 
as and when required. The support is available during the next nancial year and beyond that; and

- the management has also prepared nancial projections to demonstrate the nancial bene ts of 
above measures.

The results of the above e orts, activities and actions are expected to contribute signi cantly towards 
the pro tability, cost reduction, cash ows and equity position of the Company and mitigate the risks 
involved, therefore, the preparation of unconsolidated nancial statements on going concern 
assumption is justi ed. However, the conditions stated above, indicate existence of material 
uncertainty which may cast signi cant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as going concern .

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1 Statement of compliance

These unconsolidated nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved 
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. As per the requirements of circular No. 23/2017 dated
04 October 2017 issued by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), companies 
whose nancial year closes on or before 31 December 2017 shall prepare their nancial statements in 
accordance with the provisions of the repealed Ordinance. Accordingly, approved accounting 
standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as are noti ed under the repealed 
Ordinance, provisions of and directives issued under the repealed Ordinance. In case requirements 
di er, the provisions of or directives under the repealed Ordinance shall prevail.

3.2 Accounting convention

These unconsolidated nancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention 
except for:

- Property, plant and equipment which are carried at revalued amount in accordance with IAS 16 
“Property, Plant and Equipment” as disclosed in note 4.1; and

- Employees’ retirement bene ts which is carried at present value of de ned bene t obligation net of 
fair value of plan assets in accordance with the requirements of IAS 19 "Employee Bene ts" , as 
disclosed in note 22.1.

3.3 Adoption of amended standards

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated nancial statements are
consistent with those of the previous nancial year except as described below:

New standards, interpretations and amendments

The Company has adopted the following accounting standard and the amendments and interpretation
of IFRSs which became e ective for the current year:
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2017

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities and IAS
27 Separate Financial Statements – Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception
(Amendment)
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements – Accounting for Acquisition of Interest in Joint Operation (Amendment)
IAS1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Disclosure Initiative (Amendment)
IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38  intangible assets - Clari cation of Acceptable
Method of Depreciation and Amortization (Amendment)
IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 41 Agriculture -Agriculture: Bearer Plants
(Amendment)
IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements – Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements 
(Amendment)

The adoption of the above amendments in the accounting standards did not have any material e ect 
on the nancial statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet 
e ective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan would be e ective from the dates mentioned below against the 
respective standard or interpretation:

Standard or Interpretation
ective date

(annual periods
beginning on or

after)

IFRS 2 – Share-based Payments – Classi cation and Measurement of Share -
based Payments Transactions (Amendments) 01 January 2018

IFRS 10 – Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investment in Associates 
and Joint Ventures -Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor 
and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendment) Not yet nalized

IAS 7 – Statement of Cash Flows - Disclosure Initiative (Amendment) 01 January 2017
IAS 12 – Income Taxes – Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized 

losses (Amendments) 01 January 2017
IFRS 4 – Insurance Contracts: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 

Insurance Contracts – (Amendments) 01 January 2018
IAS 40 – Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments) 01 January 2018
IFRIC 22 – Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 01 January 2018
IFRIC 23 – Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 01 January 2019

The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the
Company's nancial statements in the period of initial application.

In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting standards
have also been issued by the IASB in December 2016. Such improvements are generally e ective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2018. The Company expects that such
improvements to the standards will not have any impact on the Company's nancial statements in the
period of initial application

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be noti ed by the SECP 
for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

Standard or Interpretation

IASB ective date
(annual periods

beginning on or after)

IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments: Classi cation and Measurement 01 January 2018
01 January 2018
01 January 2019
01 January 2021

IFRS 15 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 16 – Leases
IFRS 17 – Insurance Contracts

Subsequent to the year ended 30 June 2017, SECP vide S.R.O. 007(1) / 2017 dated 04 October
2017, has noti ed the adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 for annual periods beginning on or after 01 July
2018. The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of the adoption of these standards.   



ANNUAL REPORT    2016/17 32

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2017

3.4 Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of these unconsolidated nancial statements in conformity with approved accounting
standards, as applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that a ect the application of policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may di er from these estimates. The estimates
underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision a ects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision a ects both current and future periods.
Judgments, estimates and assumptions made by the management that may have a signi cant risk of
material adjustments to the unconsolidated nancial statements in the subsequent years are as follows:

i) Useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment (note 4.1and 5.1); 
ii) Impairment against investment in subsidiary (note 4.2);
iii) Provision for slow moving and obsolete stores and spares (note 4.4);
iv) Provision for doubtful debts and other receivables (note 4.5 and 11.3);
v) Impairment against other nancial and non- nancial assets (note 4.8); 
vi) Estimates of receivables and payables in respect of sta  retirement bene t schemes (note 4.11

and 22.1);
vii) Provision for compensated absences(note 4.12);
viii) Provision for taxation (note 4.15,9and 35); and
ix) Contingencies (note4.16 and 27.1).

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Property, plant and equipment

Owned 
These are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, if any, except for freehold land, lease hold land, building on freehold land, roads
and civil works, building on leasehold land, plant and machinery, generators and safety and lab
equipments which are measured at revalued amounts, which is the fair value at the date of revaluation
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any, recognised subsequent to
the date of revaluation. The surplus arising on revaluation is disclosed as surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment.
Depreciation is charged to pro t and loss account, applying the straight line method whereby costs of 
assets, less their residual values, is written o  over their estimated useful lives at rates as disclosed in
note 5.1 to the unconsolidated nancial statements. Depreciation on additions is charged from the
month in which the asset is available for use up to the month preceding the disposal. 

The carrying values of the Company’s property plant and equipment are reviewed at each nancial year
end for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not
be recoverable. If any such indication exists, and where the carrying values exceed the estimated
recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount.
Repairs and maintenance cost is written o  to the pro t and loss account in the year in which it is
incurred. Major renewals and improvements are capitalized when it is probable that respective future
economic bene ts will ow to the Company. 

An item of property plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
bene ts are expected from its use or disposal. Gain or loss on disposal of property plant and equipment
is recognised in the yearof disposal. 

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress, is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost consists of:

- expenditures incurred for the acquisition of the speci c asset, dismantling, refurbishment,
construction and installation of the asset so acquired. 

- borrowing cost and exchange di erences arising on foreign currency nancings to the extent these
are regarded as adjustment to interest costs for qualifying assets if its recognition criteria is met as
mentioned in note 4.18 to the unconsolidated nancial statements.

- exchange loss, interest expenses and other expenses as mentioned in note 5.4 to the
unconsolidated nancial statements.
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- trial run cost of testing the asset. If the income from the testing activity is higher than the cost of
testing the asset, then the net e ect will be a deduction from the cost of the asset. 

Assets subject to nance lease

Finance leases, which transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and bene ts incidental to
ownership of the leased item, are stated at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Lease payments are apportioned between the nance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.  

Leased assets are depreciated over the useful lives of the assets. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated
over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term. Depreciation, repair and
maintenance and gain/loss on disposal of assets subject to nance lease is recognised in the same
manner as for owned assets.   

4.2 Investment in subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary is initially recognised at cost. At subsequent reporting dates, the Company
reviews the carrying amount of the investment to assess whether there is any indication that such
investments have su ered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Such impairment losses or
reversal of impairment losses are recognised in the pro t and loss account. These are classi ed as
'long-term investment' in the unconsolidated nancial statements.     

4.3 Stock-in-trade

All stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV).

Raw materials

Cost in relation to crude oil is determined on the basis of First-In-First-Out (FIFO) basis. Net realizable
value in relation to crude oil represents replacement cost at the balance sheet date. 

Finished products

Cost of nished products comprises of the cost of crude oil and re ning charges consisting of direct
expenses and appropriate production overheads. Direct expenses are arrived at on the basis of average
cost for the year per barrel of throughput. Production overheads, including depreciation, are allocated to
throughput proportionately on the basis of actual throughput.   

Net realizable value in relation to nished products is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated cost of completion and estimated cost necessary to make the sale. 

4.4 Stores and Spares

These are stated at moving average cost less impairment loss, if any. For items which are slow moving
and / or identi ed as surplus to the Company's requirements, adequate provision is made for any excess
book value over estimated realizable value. Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving items where
necessary and is recognised in the pro t and loss account.   

4.5 Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are stated at original invoice amount less provision for doubtful debts
and other receivables, if any. Provision for doubtful debts/ other receivables is based on the
management’s assessment of customers’ outstanding balances and creditworthiness. Bad debts are
written-o  when identi ed.  

4.6 Loans, advances, trade deposits and short-term pre payments

These are initially recognised at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given. Subsequent to
initial recognition assessment is made at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is an
indication that a nancial asset or group of assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the estimated
recoverable amount of that asset or group of assets is determined and any impairment loss is recognised
for the di erence between the recoverable amount and the carrying value.    
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4.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost. For the purposes of cash ow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash in hand , balances with banks and running nance facility. 

4.8 Impairment

Financial assets

A nancial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence
that it is impaired. A nancial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or
more events have had a negative e ect on the estimated future cash ows of that asset.  

Individually signi cant nancial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining
nancial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.  

All impairment losses are recognised in the pro t and loss account. An impairment loss is reversed if the
reversal can be related objectively to an event accruing after the impairment loss was recognised. 

Non - nancial assets

The carrying amounts of non- nancial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether
there is any indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense in the pro t and loss account. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less
cost to sell and value-in-use. Value-in-use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash

ows using a discount rate that re ects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risk speci c to the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identi able cash ows (cash-generating units).      

An impairment loss is reversed if there is a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.   

4.9 Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

The surplus arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is credited to the “Surplus on
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment ” shown below equity in the balance sheet in accordance with
the requirements of Section 235 of the repealed Ordinance. The said section was amended through the
Companies (Amendment) Ordinance, 2002. The Company has adopted following accounting treatment of
depreciation / amortisation on revalued assets, in accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan’s (SECP) SRO 45(1)/2003 dated 13 January 2003:   

- depreciation / amortisation on assets which are revalued is determined with reference to the value
assigned to such assets on revaluation and depreciation / amortisation charge for the year is taken
to the pro t and loss account; and  

- an amount equal to incremental depreciation / amortisation for the year net of deferred taxation is
transferred from “Surplus on Revaluation of property, plant and equipment” to accumulated loss
through Statement of Changes in Equity to record realization of surplus to the extent of the
incremental depreciation / amortisation charge for the year.      

Upon disposal, any revaluation surplus relating to the asset being disposed is transferred to accumulated 
pro t.

4.10 Mark-up bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less directly 
attributable transaction costs.

Loans and borrowings are subsequently stated at amortized cost with any di erence between the proceeds
(net of transaction cost) and the redemption value recognised in the pro t and loss account over the period
of the borrowing using the e ective interest method.  
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4.11 Sta  retirement bene ts

De ned bene t plan

The Company operates a funded gratuity scheme covering all its permanent employees who have
completed minimum qualifying period of service. The Company’s obligation under the scheme is
determined through actuarial valuations carried out under the "Projected Unit Credit Method". The latest
actuarial valuation was carried out at 30 June 2017 and based on the actuarial valuation, the Company had
recognised the liability for retirement bene ts and the corresponding expenses. Actuarial gains and losses
that arise are recognised in other comprehensive income in the year in which they arise. Past service costs
are recognised immediately in pro t and loss account irrespective of the fact that the bene ts are vested or
non-vested. Current service costs and any past service costs together with the e ect of the unwinding of
the discount on plan liabilities are charged to operating expenses.        

The amount recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of de ned bene t obligation as
reduced by the fair value of plan assets. 

De ned contribution plan

The Company operates a funded provident fund scheme for all its eligible employees. Equal contributions
are made by the Company and the employees at 8.33% of the basic salary of the eligible employees.  

4.12 Compensated absences

The Company accounts for the liability in respect of employees’ compensated absences in the year in
which these are earned. Provisions to cover the obligation are made using the current salary levels of the
employees. No actuarial valuation of compensated absences is carried out as the management considers
that the nancial impact is not material.    

4.13 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration
to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

4.14 Ijarah contracts

Leases under Shariah compliant Ijarah contracts, where signi cant portion of the risk and reward of
ownership is retained by the lessor, are classi ed as Ijarah. Rentals under these arrangements are 
charged to pro t and loss account on straight line basis over the lease term. 

4.15 Taxation

Current

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation in accordance
with Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary di erences arising at
the balance sheet date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for nancial
reporting purposes. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary di erences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary di erences to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable
pro ts will be available against which the assets may be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax bene t will be realized.  

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.  
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4.16 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, if it is probable that an out ow of resources embodying economic bene ts will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are   
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to re ect the current best estimate.

4.17 Liabilities and nance charges against assets subject to nance lease

Liabilities against assets subject to nance lease are accounted for at net present value of minimum
payments under the lease arrangements. Lease payments are apportioned between the nance charges
and reduction of lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Financial costs are charged directly to the pro t and loss account except those which are directly
attributable to the acquisition and installation of a qualifying asset (refer note 4.1).    

4.18 Contribution against future issuance of shares

Foreign currency amounts received in cash as contribution against future issuance of shares from the
Parent Company is stated at the rates at which these were received. Foreign currency payments by the
Parent Company directly to foreign suppliers of plant and machinery / foreign dismantling and
refurbishment services providers are initially stated at Pak Rupees equivalent amount translated at the
rates approximating to those ruling on the date of transaction. There after, these are revalued and stated
at the average of Pak Rupees exchange rates quoted by selected authorised dealers approximating to
those ruling on the dates the related plant and machinery items are received in Pakistan (i.e. the date of
the bill of entry as per the requirements of Foreign Exchange Manual 2002). However, where the related
plant and machinery items have not yet been received by the Company, these payments are translated
at the year-end exchange rate equivalents. 

4.19 Borrowings and related costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or installation of qualifying assets,
that necessarily take substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, are capitalized as a
part of cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for intended use. All
other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with borrowing of funds and
exchange di erence arising on foreign currency fundings to the extent those are regarded as adjustment
to the interest cost, net of related interest income, if any.    

4.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic bene ts will ow to the Company and
revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and is recognised on the following basis:  

- Sales are recognised when the signi cant risk and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the
customer which coincide with the dispatch of goods to the customers. 

- Export sales are recognised on the basis of product shipped to the customers.

- Handling and storage income, rental incomeon equipmentand other services income is recognized on
accrual basis. 

4.21 Other income

Other income is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic bene ts will ow to the Company 
and amount can be measured reliably. Other income is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised on the following basis: 

- Mark-up on delayed payment charges are recognised on the time proportionate basis.

- Interest income on short-term deposits and interest bearing advances are recognised on the
proportionate basis.

- Handling income from gantry operations and pipeline charges are recognised on an accrual basis.
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- Scrap sales, dealership incomeand rental income are recognised on an accrual basis.

- Gain on disposal is recognised at the time of diposal of operating xed assets.

4.22 Foreign currencies translation

Foreign currency transactions during the yearare recorded at the exchange rates approximating those
ruling on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at
the rates of exchange which approximate those prevailing on the balance sheet date. Gains and losses on 
translation are taken to pro t and loss account.

4.23 Financial instruments

All nancial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value, and subsequently re-measured at fair
value or amortized cost as the case may be. The Company derecognises the nancial assets and nancial
liabilities when it ceases to be a party to such contractual provisions of the instruments.  

4.24 O setting of nancial assets and nancial liabilities

Financial assets and nancial liabilities are o set and the net amount is reported in the nancial statements 
only when there is legally enforceable right to set -o  the recognised amounts and the Company intends 
either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.

4.25 Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identi ed as Chief Executive O cer of the
Company.   

4.26 Dividends and appropriations

Dividends and reserve appropriations are recognised in the year in which these are declared / approved. 
The distribution of dividend and other appropriations is subject to the covenant as mentioned in note 19.2.

4.27 Functional and presentation currency 

These nancial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Note 30 June 30 June
2017 2016

------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------
5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating xed assets
Capital work-in-progress

5.1 39,002,978 12,527,158
5.2 34,043,972 53,626

73,046,950 12,580,784
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5.1.1 The Company’s assets located at lling stations are not in possession of the Company. In view of large
number of dealers, the management considers it impracticable to disclose particulars of assets not in
possession of the Company as required under para 5 of part I of the Fourth Schedule to the repealed
Ordinance.  

5.1.2 During the year, revaluation exercise was carried out by an independent valuer, resulting in surplus on
revaluation amounting to Rs. 743.750 million. The fair values were determined with reference to market
based evidence, based on active market prices and relevant enquiries and information as considered
necessary, adjusted for any di erence in nature, location or condition of the speci c property and in
case where market based evidence was not available or not applicable due to the specialized nature of
asset, then it was based on depreciated replacement cost method.     

5.1.3 Had there been no revaluation, the net book value of speci c classes of operating xed assets would
have amounted to: 

Note 2017 2016
------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------

Freehold land
Lease hold land
Buildings on freehold land, roads and civil works
Building on leasehold land
Plant and machinery
Generators

50,654 46,731
213,200 213,200

1,142,762 746,175
60,555 -

26,749,116 4,777,931
94,328 55,975

28,310,615 5,840,012

5.1.4 Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales 29.1 2,647,781 1,104,938
Administrative expenses 30 83,877 54,138
Selling and distribution expenses 31 37,192 37,643

2,768,850 1,196,719

5.2 Capital work-in-progress

The movement of capital work-in-progress during the year is as follows:

Transfer Transferred Closing balance
Opening Upon to operating 30 June 30 June

Note Balance Merger Additions xed assets 2017 2016

------------------------ (Rupees in ‘000) -----------------------------

Building on freehold land,
roads and civil works 229 462 - - 691 229

Plant and machinery
Filling stations 

5.2.1, 
5.2.2, 5.3

& 5. 4 45,084 30,813,721 3,212,959 (36,796) 34,034,968 45,084
8,313 - - - 8,313 8,313

53,626 30,814,183 3,212,959 36,796 34,043,972 53,626

5.2.1 Plant and machinery amounting to USD 4 million (30 June 2016: Nil) is outside the country and is in
the process of being brought into the country. 

5.2.2 Includes dismantling and refurbishment charges paid to-date by the sponsors in lieu of its equity 
contribution in the Company as disclosed in note 17.2 to these unconsolidated nancial statements. 

5.3 Capitalization of borrowing costs amounting to Rs. 520.022 million (30 June 2016: Nil) have been
determined at the rate of 7.45% (30 June 2016: Nil) per annum.  

5.4 Plant and machinery include exchange di erence of Rs. 27.153 million (30 June 2016: Nil)
representing adjustment of interest cost.  
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Note

Note

Note

2017 2016
----------- Rupees in '000 -------

6. LONG-TERM INVESTMENT-at cost

Investment in subsidiaries–unlisted
Byco Terminals Pakistan Limited  (BTPL)
Byco Isomerisation Pakistan (Private) Limited (BIPL)

6.1 - 5,729,258
6.2 16,931,504 16,931,504

16,931,504 22,660,762

6.1 As disclosed in note 1.2 above, the entire business of BTPL including its properties, assets, liabilities 
and rights and obligations vested into the Company with e ect from the close of business on 30 June 
2016. 

6.2 This represents investment in BIPL–a wholly owned subsidiary, of 1,693,150,430 shares (30 June
2016: 1,693,150,430) of Rs. 10 each. BIPL is principally engaged in blending, re ning and processing
of petroleum naphtha to produce petroleum products such as premium motor gasoline.   

2017 2016
----------- Rupees in '000-------

7. LONG-TERMLOANS ANDADVANCES–
unsecured , considered good

Loan to Coastal Re nery Limited (CRL) 7.1 1,518,780 -
Advance against investment in shares 7.2 360,000 -

1,878,780 -
Current portion of loan to CRL 12 (100,844) -

1,777,936 -

7.1 This includes nance provided by the Company to CRL for construction of the Buoy amounting to Rs. 
830 million and a loan amounting to Rs. 688.78 million provided by the Company to CRL on the terms 
as fully explained in 19.3 of these unconsolidated nancial statements.

7.2 Represents advance paid against the purchase of shares of CRL. 
2017 2016

------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------

8. LONG-TERM DEPOSITS

Lease deposit - 6,955
Rental premises 8.1 14,178 7,089
Others 2,778 3,189

16,956 17,233
Current portion 13 - (6,955)

16,956 10,278

8.1 Represents security deposit paid against o ce premises.

9. DEFERRED TAXATION

Deductible temporary di erences arising in respect of:
- employees retirement bene t 54,055 16,576
- provision for doubtful debts 1,086,570 890,748
- nance lease - 140
- recoupable unabsorbed tax losses and depreciation 9.1 3,345,934 1,940,661
- recoupable minimum turnover tax 9.1 & 9.2 2,075,771 -

6,562,330 2,848,125

Taxable temporary di erences arising in respect of: 
- accelerated tax depreciation (3,499,028) (852,685)
- surplus on revaluation of property, plant and  

Equipment 18 (1,780,370) (1,995,440)
(5,279,398) (2,848,125)

1,282,932 -

Note 2017 2016
------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------
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9.1 Deferred tax asset is recognized for tax losses, minimum taxes and depreciation available for carry-
forward to the extent that the realization of the related tax bene t through future taxable pro ts, based
on the projections, is probable. As of the balance sheet date, deferred tax asset amounting to Rs.
3,338.147 million (30 June 2016: Rs. 1,935.022 million) in respect of unabsorbed tax depreciation has not 
been recognised in these unconsolidated nancial statements.  

9.2 During the year, the Company has recognized deferred tax asset on recoupable minimum turnover tax
amounting to Rs. 2, 075.771 million (30 June 2016: Rs. Nil). Out of the total recoupable minimum
turnover tax, Rs. 866.493 million relates to the years in which the Company was in a tax loss scenario 
In 2013, the High Court of Sindh, in respect of another company, overturned the interpretation of the
Appellate Tribunal on Section 113(2)(c) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and decided that minimum
turnover tax cannot be carried forward where there is no tax paid on account of loss for the year or
carried forward losses. The Company’s management is however of the view, duly supported by the
legal advisor, that the above order would not be maintained by the Supreme Court,  which the
Company intends to approach if required. Accordingly, the Company has recognized deferred
tax asset on recoupable minimum turnover tax. 

2017 2016
------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------

10. STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw material 10.1 & 10.2 6,784,377 2,389,729
Finished products 10.3, 10.4 & 10.5 5,798,472 4,942,026

12,582,849 7,331,755

10.1 This includes raw material in transit amounting to Rs. 4,032.88 million (30 June 2016: Rs. 1,492.395
million) as at the balance sheet date. 

10.2 Raw material costing Rs. Nil (30 June 2016: Rs. 2,368.790 million ) has been written down by Rs. Nil
(30 June 2016: Rs. 22.287 million) to net realizable value. 

10.3 This includes nished product held by third parties and related party amounting to Rs. 1,033.413
million (30 June 2016: Rs. 1,345.617 million) and Rs. 103.839 million(30 June 2016: Rs. 1,157.273
million) respectively, as at the balance sheet date. 

10.4 This includes nished product in transit amounting to Rs. Nil (30 June 2016: Rs. 729.435 million) as at
the balance sheet date. 

10.5 Finished products costing Rs. 3,589.267 million (30 June 2016: Rs. 1,327.639 million) has been written
down by Rs. 303.694 million (30 June 2016: Rs. 156.158 million) to net realizable value. 

11.1 There is no balance that is past due or impaired. 

11.2 As disclosed in note 1.2 to these unconsolidated nancial statements, BOPL and BTPL have merged
with and into the Company. 

Note

Note

2017 2016
------- (Rupees in ‘000)-------

11. TRADE DEBTS – unsecured 

Considered good
Due from related parties:

- K-Electric Limited 11. 1 224,068 196
- Byco Oil Pakistan Limited (BOPL) 11.2 - 1,005,506
- Byco Terminals Pakistan Limited (BTPL) 11.2 - 186,693

Others 4,634,250 7,094,502

Considered doubtful 3,621,901 2,873,379

8,480,219 11,160,276

Provision for doubtful debts 11.3 (3,621,901) (2,873,379)
4,858,318 8,286,897
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12. LOANS AND ADVANCES – unsecured, considered good 

Note 2017 2016
------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------

11.3 Provision for doubtful debts

Opening balance 2,873,379 2,192,831
Provision made during the year 33 748,522 680,548
Closing balance 3,621,901 2,873,379

Current portion of loan to CRL 7 100,844 -
Loan to employees 100 100
Advance to suppliers and contractors 125,120 3,038,052

226,064 3,038,152

13. TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS 

Current portion of long - term deposits 8 - 6,955

Prepayments

- Insurance 3,065 16,933
- Rent 10,108 2,612

13,173 26,500

14. OTHER RECEIVABLES – considered good 

Inland Freight Equalization Margin 448,072 397,062
Due from related parties 14.1 705,672 537,340
Receivable from CRL 14.2 994,232 -

2,147,976 934,402

14.1 This includes amount of Rs. 25.138 million (30 June 2016: Rs . Nil) receivable from BII, the Parent
Company, in respect of expenses incurred on behalf of BII by the Company and also an amount of Rs.
680.534 million (30 June 2016: Rs. 190.427 million) receivable against pre -commencement and other
expenses incurred and purchases made on behalf of BIPL.   

14.2 Represents expenses incurred by the Company on behalf of CRL. The outstanding balance is being
adjusted against the cost payable to CRL on account of usage of buoy.

Note 2017 2016
------- (Rupees in‘000)  ------

15. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 238 102

Cash at banks
- Current accounts 112,108 130,764
- Saving / deposit accounts 15.1 & 1 5.2 137,231 102,517

249,339 233,281
249,577 233,383

15.1 These carry interest at the rates ranging from 3.5% to 6.0% (30 June 2016: 5.3% to 8.2%) per annum.

15.2 This includes Rs. 2.205 million (30 June 2016: Rs. 5.254 million) kept under lien against letter of credit
facilities obtained from banks. 
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16. SHARE CAPITAL 

2017 2016
(Number of Shares) 

6,000,000,000 1,200,000,000

Authorized share capital

Ordinary shares of Rs.10/ -
each 60,000,000 12,000,000

187,348,638 977,858,737

Issued, subscribed and 
paid-up capital

Issued for cash 1,873,486 9,778,587

5,142,536,068 -
Issued for consideration other 
than cash 16.1 51,425,361 -

5,329,884,706 977,858,737 53,298,847 9,778,587

16.1 As disclosed in note 1.2 to these unconsolidated nancial statements, the Company has allotted
5,142,536,068 fully paid ordinary shares to the registered shareholders of BOPL pursuant to the
merger and has cancelled the shares previously issued for cash to BOPL   .

17. CONTRIBUTION AGAINST FUTURE ISSUE OF SHARES

From Byco Industries Incorporated (BII), the Parent Company
17.1 , 17.2 

& 17.3 761,129 -

17.1 In respect of plant and machinery

Represents Rs. 406.400 million (30 June 2016: Rs. Nil) being rupee equivalent of US $ 4.0 million (30 
June 2016: US $ Nil) representing part of the cost of plant, machinery purchased by the Company.

Pursuant to a Share Subscription Agreement dated 31 August 2006 and amended vide an addendum
dated 31 July 2007 entered into between the Company and its sponsor, the sponsor has paid the
above amount to the supplier against the said assets in lieu of its equity contribution in the Company
for which Ordinary Shares will be issued to it, at par, upon meeting the applicable requirements as
mentioned in note 17.3 to these unconsolidated nancial statements.     

17.2 In respect of dismantling and refurbishment of Aromatic Plant:

This includes a sum of (i) Rs. 303.184 million (30 June 2016: Rs. Nil), being rupee equivalent of €
2.259 million and £ 0.290 million (30 June 2016: € Nil and £ Nil) and (ii) Rs. 51.544 million (30 June
2016: Rs. Nil), being rupee equivalent of US $ 0.507 million (30 June 2016: US $ Nil), representing the
dismantling and refurbishment cost respectively, of plant, machinery and equipment, paid to date by
the sponsors in lieu of its equity contribution in the Company for which ordinary shares will be issued to
it, at par, for consideration other than cash upon meeting the applicable requirements as mentioned in
note 17.3 to these unconsolidated nancial statements.        

2017 2016
------- (Rupees in‘000)  ------

2017 2016
------- (Rupees in‘000)  ------

17.3 Shares shall be issued to the Parent Company upon meeting the requirements of paragraph 7 of
Chapter XX of the Foreign Exchange Manual (FE Manual) and Rule 8 of the Companies (Issue of
Capital) Rules, 1996.   

Note

Note
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Note 2017 2016
----- (Rupees in ‘000) ----

18. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND  
EQUIPMENT

Opening balance 6,716,431 7,435,974

Transfer upon merger 36,925 -
Surplus on revaluation carried out during the year 743,750 -

780,675 -
Transfer to accumulated loss in respect of:

- incremental depreciation charged during the year – net of tax 501,830 496,485
- related deferred tax liability 215,070 223,058

716,900 719,543

6,780,206 6,716,431
Less: Related deferred tax liability :

- on revaluation at the beginning of the year  1,995,440 2,218,498
- on incremental depreciation charged during the year (215,070) (223,058)

9 1,780,370 1,995,440

Closing balance 4,999,836 4,720,991

19. LONG-TERM FINANCING AND MARK-UP

Facilities Mark-up rate
Installments

Note Payment term Number Commencement 2017 2016
----(Rupees in ‘000)----

Secured

Syndicate loan I
19.1&

19.2
Six months kibor

Semi-annually 16 June 2013 7,698,345 12,080,128

Syndicate loan II
19.1

Three months kibor + 
3.25% Semi-annually 12 January 2014 1,082,723 -

Syndicate loan III 19.3

8% per annum for the 
rst two years from the   
date of disbursement 

and six months kibor or 
12% whichever is lower

for subsequent years 

Semi-annually 12 June 2017 686,306 -

Arrangement fee 19.3 - - - 65,484 -

Bilateral Loan  I 19.4 Six months kibor + 2.5% Semi-annually 09 June 2015 1,438,592 -

Bilateral Loan  II 19.4 - - - - - -

Bilateral Loan  III 19.4
Six months kibor + 

2.75% Quarterly 14 February 2016 1,440,000 -

Bilateral Loan IV  19.4
Six months kibor + 

3.25% Semi-annually 04 August 2016 125,000 -

Bilateral Loan  V 19.4 Six months kibor + 3.5% Semi-annually 08 December 2015 95,833 -
12,632,283 12,080,128

Mark-up 7,539,492 3,337,517

Sukuk certi cates 19.5
Three months kibor + 

1.05% Quarterly 12 April 2019 3,120,000 -

Unsecured
Supplier’s credit 19.6 One yearLibor + 1% Semi-annually 20 December 2021 1,628,768 -

Others
19.6

Nil to six months kibor + 
4% Semi-annually 05 December 2021 6,540,002 -

Mark-up 1,190,235 -
9,359,005 -

32,650,780 15,417,645

Current maturity (7,932,304) (5,442,326)
24,718,476 9,975,319
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19.1 Represent facilities availed from various banks and are secured against the Company’s xed and
current assets.

19.2 The loan agreement contains the covenant that the Company cannot pay dividend to its shareholders if
an event of default is occurred. 

19.3 Represents syndicate facility including Musharaka facility availed from a commercial bank for the
purpose of acquiring shares of CRL. The facility is secured against charge on all present and future
assets of CRL, personal guarantees and personal properties of sponsors of CRL along with pledge of
80% shares of CRL.  

19.4 Represent bilateral loans availed from various banks and nancial institutions and are secured against
the Company’s xed and current assets.  

19.5 Represent privately placed long-term Islamic certi cates (Sukuk) amounting to Rs. 3,120 million, issued
by the Company during the year to meet the expansion plans of the Company. This facility is secured
against xed assets (excluding land and building) of the Company.  

19.6 The loans are inferior to the rights of present and future secured nancial institutions which are or may
be lender to the company. The loan ranks superior to any existing or future shareholder loans, credits
or advance made to the Company by any of its shareholders.  

21.1 Represented deposit received from BOPL against land lease rental.

21. LONG-TERM DEPOSITS

Deposit from related party 21.1 - 3,646
Trade and other deposits 21.2 172,375 127,332

172,375 130,978

20. LOANS FROM RELATED PARTIES – unsecured

Byco Industries Incorporated, the Parent Company 20.1 6,110,417 -

20.1 Represents:

i) a foreign currency loan of USD 0.144 million which carries mark-up at the rate of LIBOR+1% per
annum, which was due on 22 June 2012 by a bullet payment. At the end of the current year, the
applicable interest rate is 2.7384% per annum.  

ii) a supplier’s credit amounting to USD 41.927 million novated from Cnergyico Acisal Incorporated
during the year ended 30 June 2015 under the agreement. This carries mark-up at the rate of
LIBOR+1% per annum, payable semi-annually. At the end of the current year, the applicable
interest rate is 2.7384% per annum.   

iii) balance amount of loan novated from Byco Busient Incorporated, the ultimate Parent Company
amounting to USD 16.124 million (principal USD 15.713 million and markup USD 0.411 million) is
repayable in four unequal semi-annual installments. This carries markup at the rate of LIBOR + 1%
per annum, payable semi-annually. At the end of the current year, the applicable interest rate was
2.7384% per annum.    

All of the aforesaid loans are repayable subject to the conditions and rights as disclosed in note 19.6 to
these unconsolidated nancial statements. 

Note

Note

2017 2016
------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------

2017 2016
------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------
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21.2 This includes interest-free deposits received from logistics vendors as security against goods to be
transported. 

22. DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Employees retirement bene ts 22.1 180,184 53,472
Arrangement fee 173,330 -

353,514 53,472

22.1 Employees retirements bene ts-sta  gratuity

22.1.1 General description

The Company operates employee retirement bene ts for permanent employees who have completed
the minimum service period. In accordance with the requirements of IAS –19 “Employee Bene ts”, 
actuarial valuation was carried out as at 30 June 2017, using the “Projected Unit Credit Method”. 
Provision has been made in the unconsolidated nancial statements to cover obligation in accordance
with the actuarial recommendations. Details of signi cant assumptions used for the valuation and
disclosures in respect of above-mentioned scheme is as follows:    

2017 2016
------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------

Note

Note 2017 2016
----- -----(Rupees in ‘000) 

22.1.2 Reconciliation of amount payable to de ned
bene t plan

Present value of de ned bene t obligation
Fair value of plan assets

208,096 75,60922.1.3
22.1.4 (27,912) (22,137)

180,184 53,472
22.1.3 Movement in the present value of de ned

bene t obligation: 

Opening balance
Current service cost
Interest cost
Cost of transfers during the year
Net liability of employees transferred
Transfer to the Parent Company
Bene ts paid during the year
Actuarial loss
Closing balance

75,609 74,733
14,920 15,410

6,200 6,342
35,347 -

66, 481 -
- 1,245

(13,448) (22,618)
22,987 497

208,096 75,609

22.1.4 Movement in the fair value of plan assets:

Opening balance 22,137 36,013
Expected return on plan assets 2,091 2,762
Contributions 15,649 18,000 
Bene ts paid during the year (13,447) (22,618)
Bene ts paid to employees of Subsidiary Company - (12,169)
Actuarial gain / (loss) 1,482 149
Closing balance 27,912 22,137

22.1.5 Movement in net liability 

Opening balance
Charge for the year
Net liability of employees transferred
Transfer to the Parent Company
Contributions 
Bene ts paid to employees of Subsidiary Company
Actuarial loss
Closing balance 

53,472 38,720
54,375 18,990
66,481 -

- 1,245
(15,649) (18,000)

- 12,169

22.1.7

22.1.7

22.1.6

22.1.7 21,505 348
180,184 53,472
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2017 2016
------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------22.1.6 Charge for the year

Current service cost
Cost of transfers during the year
Interest cost – net

14,920 15,410
35,347 -

4,108 3,580
54,375 18,990

22.1.7 Actuarial remeasurements

Actuarial loss on de ned bene t obligations
Actuarial gain on fair value of plan assets

22,987 497
(1,482) (149)
21,505 348

22.1.8 Actuarial assumptions:

Valuation discount rate per annum
Salary increase rate per annum
Expected return on plan assets per annum
Normal retirement age of employees

9.25% 9.00%
7.25% 7.00%
9.25% 9.00%

60 years 60 years

22.1.9 Comparisons for past years:

As at June 30 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
----------------------- --------------------(Rupees `000)

Present value of de ned bene t obligation 208,096 75,609 74,733 70,969 44,673
Fair value of plan assets (27,912) (22,137) (36,013) (15,978) -
De cit 180,184 53,472 38,720 54,991 44,673

Experience adjustment on plan liabilities 22,987 497 1,091 9,656 7,406
Experience adjustment on plan assets (1,482) (149) 1,385 (65) -

21,505 348 2,476 9,591 7,406

2017 2016
------- -------(Rupees in ‘000)

22.1.10 Composition of plan assets

Equity 18,637 -
Cash at bank 9,275 22,137

22.1.11 Balance sheet date sensitivity analysis (+100 bps) on present value of de ned bene t
obligation 

2017
Discount rate Salary increase

+ 100 bps - 100 bps + 100 bps - 100 bps
---------------- ----------------(Rupees in ‘000)

Present value of de ned bene t obligation 185,351 234,979 236,335 183,907

22.1.12 As of 30 June 2017, a total of 646 employees have been covered under the above scheme.

22.1.13 Charge for the next nancial year as per the actuarial valuation report amounts to Rs.52.652 million.
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Note 2017 2016
----- (Rupees in ‘000) -----

Note 2017 2016
----- (Rupees in ‘000) -----

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors for supplies and services
Accrued liabilities
Due to related parties
Dividend payable
Sales tax, duties, levies, penalties and default surcharge
Workers' pro t participation fund
Workers’ welfare fund 
Withholding tax deductions payable
Payable to sta  provident fund 

34,505,895 18,956,639
912,964 294,785

76,560 13,658
1,146 1,146

6,114,157 6,570,028
23.1 - 109,445

41,755 15,569
176,693 1,891

46,019 13,778
41,875,189 25,976,939

23.1 The management is of the opinion, duly supported by the legal advisor that the Sindh Companies 
Pro ts (Workers’ Participation) Act 2015 does not apply on the Company. Accordingly, the Company 
has reversed the liability in respect of WPPF.

24. ADVANCE FROM CUSTOMERS 24.1 & 24.2 2,472,871 670,263

24.1 Includes Rs. 2,086.171 million (30 June 2016: Rs. Nil) received from a customer against supply of
goods. 

24.2 This includes Rs. 138 million (30 June 2016: Rs. 138 million) received in respect of demarcated plots 
of land for setting up of Liqui ed Petroleum Gas storage and lling facilities (LPG village facility). The
amount has been received in advance from consumers under LPG village facility utilization
agreement. The agreements are e ective for 10 years from the date of signing or any period
thereafter as mutually agreed. The facility is expected to commence shortly after completion of certain
legal formalities upon which the advance will be classi ed as deferred revenue and amortized over the
period of the agreed terms. These advances are interest free.    

Note 2017 2016
------- -------(Rupees in ‘000) 

25. ACCRUED MARK-UP 

Long-term nancing and mark-up 183,522 -
Loans from related parties 301,869 -
Short-term borrowings 78,822 -
Advance from customers - 95,692

564,213 95,692
26. SHORT -TERM BORROWINGS

Secured
Finance against trust receipts 26.1 1,771,784 6,593,696
Running nance 26.2 1,600,000 -

3,371,784 6,593,696

26.1 The facilities have been extended by commercial banks for import and procurement of crude oil and 
petroleum products aggregating to Rs. 22,700 million (30 June 2016: Rs. 15,000 million) out of which 
Rs. 20,928.216 million (30 June 2016: Rs. 8,406.304 million) remains unutilized as at the balance
sheet date. The facility carries mark-up ranging from 1 month's KIBOR plus 1% to 1.5%. The facility is
secured against documents of title of goods, charge over the stocks of crude oil and petroleum
products and receivables to be generated from its sales, lien on the bank's collection account.    
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26.2 Represents running nance facility amounting to Rs. 1,600 million obtained from a commercial bank.
The facility carries mark-up at the rate of three months KIBOR + 1.5% per annum. The facility is 
secured by way of rst pari passu hypothecation charge of over all present and future current and

xed assets of the Company.

27.1 Contingencies

27.1.1 Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts amounting to Rs. 3,991.089 million (30 June 
2016: Rs. 3,834.285 million) comprise of late payment charges on account of delayed payments 
against crude oil supplies from various Oil Production and Exploration Companies and based on the
opinion of legal advisor, the Company is of the view that there are no speci c contractual
arrangements with the above suppliers and hence no provision in respect of the same has been made
in these unconsolidated nancial statements.   

27.2 Commitments

27.2.1 Commitment for capital expenditure 221,474 11,478

27.2.2 Outstanding letter of credit - 10,722,572

27.2.3 Commitments in respect of purchase of CRL’s shares 830,000 -

27. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

2017 2016
------- -------(Rupees in ‘000) 

Note

2017 2016
------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------

28. TURNOVER – net

Gross Sales
- Local 110,198,050 106,086,049
- Export 5,018,086 7,581,901

115,216,136 113,667,950
Rent of equipment and storage and handling income 152,218 -

Less: Sales discount, sales tax, excise duty and 
petroleum development levy (26,795,774) (35,965,783)

88,572,580 77,702,167

29. COST OF SALES

Opening stock 4,942,026 4,176,741
Transfer upon merger 82,434 -
Cost of goods manufactured, storage and handling 29.1 44,584,261 38,269,420
Finished products purchased during the year 40,146,428 35,915,358

89,755,149 78,361,519
Closing stock 10 (5,798,472) (4,942,026)

83,956,677 73,419,493
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2017 2016
------- -------(Rupees in ‘000) 

2017 2016
------- -------(Rupees in ‘000) 

Note

Note

29.1 Cost of goods manufactured, storage and handling

Raw material consumed 29.1.1 39,625,254 36,182,737
Salaries, wages and other bene ts 29.1.2 729,254 344,819
Operation cost 635,265 -
Depreciation 5.1.4 2,647,781 1,104,938
Fuel, power and water 248,436 260,475
Repairs and maintenance 134,841 102,452
Insurance 164,129 48,072
Stores and spares consumed 147,522 67,591
Sta  transportation and catering 94,702 62,676
Industrial gases and chemicals 47,979 61,700
Rent, rates and taxes 47,304 -
Security expenses 46,583 24,120
Vehicle running 15,211 9,840

44,584,261 38,269,420

29.1.1 Raw material consumed

Opening stock 2,389,729 682,874
Transfer upon merger 253,274 -
Purchases during the year 43,766,628 37,889,592

46,409,631 38,572,466
Closing stock 10 (6,784,377) (2,389,729)

39,625,254 36,182,737

29.1.2 This includes a sum of Rs.29.407 million (30 June 2016: Rs. 11.509 million) in respect of sta
retirement bene ts.  

30. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and other bene ts 30.1 456,640 293,174
Rent, rates and taxes 88,729 61,963
Depreciation 5.1.4 83,877 54,138
Repairs and maintenance 35,302 32,536
Legal and professional 26,625 16,718
Vehicle running 19,678 20,322
Travelling and conveyance 32,074 23,342
Fee and subscriptions 16,525 9,307
Utilities 10,183 7,263
Insurance 8,728 6,573
Printing and stationary 9,029 7,482
Auditors’ remuneration 30.2 6,000 4,050
SAP maintenance costs 10,520 17,986
Others 10,917 6,390

814,827 561,244

30.1 This includes a sum of Rs. 18.414 million (30 June 2016: Rs. 4.742 million) in respect of sta
retirement bene ts. 
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Note

Note

2017 2016
------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------

2017 2016
------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------

30.2 Auditors’ remuneration

Statutory audit 3,800 1,300
Half yearly review 600 500
Consolidation of nancial statements 600 400
Special audit and other certi cations 500 1,400
Out of pocket expenses 500 450

6,000 4,050

31. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and other bene ts 31.1 162,561 169,334
Transportation and product handling charges 276,488 418,421
Rent, rates and taxes 89,380 86,461
Advertisement 6,888 47,510
Depreciation 5.1.4 37,192 37,643
Wharfage and export development surcharge 28,857 47,142
Insurance 1,335 2,036

602,701 808,547

31.1 This includes a sum of Rs. 6.555 million (30 June 2016: Rs. 2.739 million) in respect of sta  retirement
bene ts. 

32. OTHER INCOME

Income from nancial assets
Interest on balances due from customers 448,522 497,229
Interest on loan to CRL 54,791 -
Interest income on saving accounts 33,821 17,271

537,134 514,500
Income from non - nancial assets
Insurance claim 560,572 -
Reversal of excess sales tax surcharge provision 401,428 708,883
Reversal of WPPF 109,445 -
Land lease rent 303 55,962
Storage and handling income - 28,158
Gain on disposal of operating xed assets - 2,974
Dealership income 7,500 8,100

1,616,382 1,318,577
33. OTHER EXPENSES

Late payment surcharge and penalties 332,515 243,353
Provision for doubtful debts 11.3 748,522 680,548
Workers’ pro t participation fund - 38,923
Workers’ welfare fund 26,186 15,569

1,107,223 978,39334. FINANCE COSTS

Mark-up on:
- Long-term nancing 1,511,552 1,560,519
- Loans from related parties 135,349 -
- Short-term borrowings 505,184 655,286
- Workers’ pro t participation fund - 6,341
- Advances from customers - 20,159

2,152,085 2,242,305

Exchange loss – net 34.1 178,657 226,447
Bank and other charges 109,230 66,693

2,439,972 2,535,445



ANNUAL REPORT    2016/17 53

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2017

2017 2016
------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------

34.1 Represents exchange loss-net arising on revaluation of foreign currency nancial assets and
liabilities and on transactions in foreign currencies. 

35. TAXATION

Current (471,398) (434,673)
Prior year 43,141 87,001
Deferred 1,282,932 997,548

854,675 649,876

35.1 The returns of income tax have been led up to and including tax year 2016. These, except for those 
mentioned below, are deemed to be assessed under section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

35.2 The Company was selected for an audit under Section 177 and 214C of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 for the tax year 2013. Audit proceedings for all mentioned tax year was completed and a demand
of Rs. 87.105 million has been raised in an amended order passed under Section 122(1) (5) of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Being aggrieved by the amended order, the Company led an appeal
before Commissioner Inland Revenue, Appeals, Karachi which is pending for adjudication. However, as
a matter of prudence, the said amount has already been provided for in these unconsolidated nancial
statements.      

35.3 Under section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance), the Company is obligated to pay
tax at the rate of 7.5 percent on its accounting pro t before tax if it derives pro t for a tax year but does 
not distribute at least 40 percent of its after tax pro ts within six months of the end of the tax year,
through cash or bonus shares. The Company led a Constitutional Petition (CP) before the Court on 24
November 2017 challenging the tax, and the Court accepted the CP and granted a stay against the
above section.    

In case the Court’s decision is not in favor of the Company, the Company will either be required to
declare the dividend to the extent of 40% of after tax pro ts or it will be liable to pay additional tax at the
rate of 7.5% of the accounting pro t before tax of the Company for the nancial year ended 30 June
2017. As at the balance sheet date, no liability has been recorded by the Company in this respect.    

35.4 Relationship between accounting pro and income tax expense for the period

The Company is subject to Minimum Tax and Final Tax Regime under section 113 and section 169
respectively of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, therefore, relationship between income tax expense
and accounting pro t has not been presented for the current year.  

2017 2016
------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------

36. EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE–basic and diluted

Pro t after taxation 2,122,237 1,367,498

------(Number) ------

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 5,329,893,802 977,858,737

------ (Rupees) ------

Earnings per share–basic / diluted 0.40 1.40

2017 2016
------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------

37. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances
Running nance facility

249,577 233,383
(1,600,000) -
(1,350,423) 233,383
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38. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise of ultimate parent company, parent company, subsidiary company,
associated companies, directors, key management personnel, sta  provident fund and sta  gratuity
fund. All transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at
agreed terms and conditions. Details of transactions and balances with related parties during the year
are as follows:   

38.1 Transactions with related parties

Parent Company
Shares issued 48,945,202 -
Mark-up charged 135,349 -
Land lease rentals - 52,937
Purchases - 41,970,503
Sales - 12,614,170
Mark-up charged - 413,067
Allocation of gratuity expense - 1,245
Allocation of group expenses - 284,954

Subsidiary Company
Other expenses incurred 56,718 58,674
Land lease rentals - 3,025
Sales - 185,981
Services received - 549,426
Interest income - 31,978

Associated Companies
Sale of petroleum products 1,963,515 1,063,832
Purchase of operating xed assets and services 35,923 -
Interest income - 28,348

Sta  Provident Fund
Contribution to sta  provident fund 109,947 37,077

38.2 Balances with related parties

Parent Company
Payable against expenses - 12,014
Other receivables 25,138 -
Contribution against future issue of shares 761,129 -
Accrued mark-up 301,869 -
Loan payable 6,110,417 -
Receivable against land lease rental - 329,134
Accrued interest - 18,924
Security deposits payable - 3,646
Receivable against purchase of goods and services - 1,005,506

Subsidiary Companies
Receivable against sales - 186,693
Advance against services - 2,928,654
Receivable against land lease rentals - 17,779
Receivable against expenses incurred 680,534 190,427
Accrued interest - 219,462

2017 2016
------- (Rupees in ’000)-------
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Associated Companies
Long term deposit receivable 95 95
Trade debts 224,068 196
Advance against purchases - 9,407
Accrued interest 108,192 259,302
Payable against purchases 8,147 1,644

Others
Payable to Key Management Person 68,508 -
Payable to sta  provident fund 46,019 13,778

38.3 There are no transactions with key management personnel other than under the terms of employment
as disclosed in note 39 to the nancial statements. 

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT, OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company nances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital
with a view to maintain an appropriate mix between various sources of nances to minimize the risk.
The Company's principal nancial instruments comprise short-term borrowings and nancing from

nancial institutions and trade and other payables. Main purpose of these nancial instruments is to
raise funds for the import of crude oil for re ning business and for its operations. The Company has
various nancial assets such as cash (including balances with banks), deposits, loans, investment in
subsidiary companies, which are directly related to its operations.     
The Company’s overall risk management policyfocuses on minimizing potential adverse e ects on the 
Company’s nancial performance. The overall risk management of the Company is carried out by the 
Company’s senior management team under policies approved by the Board of Directors. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes and assumptions during the year ended 30 June 2017. 

The policies for managing each of these risk are summarized below:

40.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash ows of a nancial instrument will uctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk,
currency risk and other price risk.  

2017 2016
------- (Rupees in ’000) -------

The aggregate amount included in these unconsolidated nancial statements for remuneration,
including the bene ts and perquisites, to the Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Company
are as follows: 

39. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

2017   2016  
Chief 

Executive  
Director Executives   Chief 

Executive  
Directors   Executives 

    
-----------------------(Rupees in '000) -------------------------------

Fees - 900 -  - 1,000 - 
Managerial remuneration 8,100 - 360,721   10,678  6,053 143,660  
Sta  retirement bene ts -  - 57,792   1,779  1,008 23,749  
Housing and utilities -  - 116,575   3,203  1,816 46,428  
Leave fare assistance -  - 30,048   890  504 11,967  

8,100 900 565,136   16,550  10,381 225,804  

Number of persons 1 1 345  1  2 141  

39.1 The number of persons does not include those who left during the year but remuneration paid to them is 
included in the above amounts.

39.2 The Chief Executive and few Executives have been provided with company maintained cars.

39.3 As at 30 June 2017, the Company's Board of Directors consists of  7 Directors (of which 6 are Non-
Executive Directors). Except for Chief Executive and a Director, no remuneration and other bene ts
have been paid to any Director. 
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40.1.1 Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash ows of a nancial instrument will uctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s interest rate risk arises from  long-term

nancing and short-term borrowing facilities for nancing its re ning and storage business operations,
setting up of aromatic plant and meeting working capital requirements at variable rates, on loan to CRL
and on delayed payments from PSO and K-Electric Limited on which the Company earns interest. The
Company manages these mismatches through risk management policies where signi cant changes in
gap position can be adjusted.   
At the reporting date, the interest rate pro le of Company's interest-bearing nancial instruments was:

Variable Rate Instruments Note 2017 2016
---------- (Rupees in '000) --------

Financial assets
Long-term loan to CRL 7 688,780 -
Trade debts 11 6,445,239 6,132,327

7,134,019 6,132,327

Financial liabilities
Long-term nancing and mark-up 19 32,650,780 15,417,645
Loans from related parties 20 6,110,417 -
Liability against asset subject to nance lease - 4,362
Short-term borrowings 26 3,371,784 6,593,696

42,132,981 22,015,703

A change of 1% in interest rates at the year-end would have increased or decreased the pro t before
tax by Rs. 277.305 million (30 June 2016: Rs. 159.612 million). This analysis assumes that all other
variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis as for June 2016.    

40.1.2 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will uctuate due 
to changes in foreign exchange rates and arises where transactions are done in foreign currency. 

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk on transactions that are entered in a currency other
than Pak Rupees. As the Company imports plant and equipment and crude oil, it is exposed to currency
risk by virtue of borrowings (in foreign currency). Further foreign currency risk also arises on payment to
the supplier of tugs for operations of SPM. The currency in which these transactions are undertaken is
US Dollar. Relevant details are as follows:    

2017 2016
(Rupees in ‘000) (USD ‘000) (Rupees in ‘000) (USD ‘000)

Long term nancing and mark-up 1,628,768 15,512 - -

Loans from related parties 6,110,417 58,194 - -

Accrued mark-up on loan 
from related parties 301,869 2,875 - -

8,041,054 76,581 - -

The average rates applied during the year is Rs.104.85/USD(30 June 2016: Rs.103.25 / USD) and
the spot rate as at 30 June 2017 is Rs. 105/ USD (30 June 2016: 104.70 / USD).  

A change of 1% in exchange rates at the year-end would have increased or decreased the loss by Rs. 
107.722 million (30 June 2016: Rs. Nil). This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant. 
The analysis is performed on the same basis as for June 2016.

40.1.3 Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash ows of the nancial instruments will
uctuate because of changes in market prices. As at the balance sheet date, the Company is not

exposed to other price risk.   
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40.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of nancial loss to the Company if a customer or a counter party to a nancial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligation, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables
from customers, advances and deposits to suppliers and balances held with banks.  

Management of credit risk

The Company’s policy is to enter into nancial contracts in accordance with the guidelines set by the
Board of Directors and other internal guidelines. 

Credit risk is managed and controlled by the management of the Company in the following manner:

- Credit rating and / orcredit worthiness of the counterparty is taken into account along with the
nancial background so as to minimize the risk of default.  

- The risk of counterparty exposure due to failed agreements causing a loss to the Company is
mitigated by a periodic review of their credit ratings, nancial statements, credit worthiness and
market information on a regular basis.  

- Cash is held with reputable banks only.

As of the balance sheet date, the Company is exposed to credit risk on the following assets:

Note 2017 2016
------ ------Rupees in '000

2017 2016
------ ------Rupees in '000

Long-term loansand advances 7 1,417,936 -
Long-term deposits 8 16,956 10,278
Trade debts 11 4,858,318 8,286,897
Loans and advances 12 226,064 3,038,152
Trade deposits 13 - 6,955
Other receivables 14 2,147,976 934,402
Accrued interest 237,951 497,688
Bank balances 15 249,339 233,281

9,154,540 13,007,653

Credit quality of nancial assets

The credit quality of nancial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by
reference to external credit ratings agencies or the historical information about counter party default
rates as shown below:  

Bank balances
A-1+
A-1
A-2

199,465 135,691
47,898 73,664

1,976 23,926
249,339 233,281

Financial assets other than trade debts and bank balances are not exposed to any material credit risk.

Trade debts

The aging of unimpaired debtors at the balance sheet date is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired 1,937,052 3,858,095
Past due 1-30 days 18,735 20,196
Past due 31-180 days 30,371 56,745
Past due 180-365 days 27,531 1,005,506
Above 365 days 2,844,629 3,346,355

4,858,318 8,286,897
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40.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk re ects the Company’s inability in raising fund to meet commitments. Management closely
monitors the Company’s liquidity and cash ow position. This includes maintenance of balance sheet
liquidity ratios, debtors and creditors concentration both in terms of the overall funding mix and
avoidance of undue reliance on any individual customer.   

The table below summarizes the maturity pro le of the Company's nancial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments. 

On demand Less than     
3 months

3 to 12    
months

1 to 5    
years

Total

-------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -------------------------------

On demand Less than         
3 months

3 to 12    
months

1 to 5    
years

Total

-------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -------------------------------

2017
Long-term nancing and mark-up - 1,612,645 6,319,659 24,718,476 32,650,780
Loans from related parties - - - 6,110,417 6,110,417
Long-term deposits - - - 172,375 172,375
Trade and other payables 6,115,303 35,759,886 - - 41,875,189
Advance from customers - 2,472,871 - - 2,472,871
Short-term borrowings - 3,371,784 - - 3,371,784
Accrued mark-up 564,213 - - - 564,213

6,679,516 43,217,186 6,319,659 31,001,268 87,217,629

2016
Long-term nancingand mark-up - 1,632,326 3,810,000 9,975,319 15,417,645
Liabilities against assets subject to nance lease - 4,362 - - 4,362
Long-term deposits - - - 130,978 130,978
Trade and other payables 1,146 25,975,793 - - 25,976,939
Advance from customers - 670,263 - - 670,263
Short-term borrowings - 6,593,696 - - 6,593,696
Accrued mark-up 95,692 - - - 95,692

96,838 34,876,440 3,810,000 10,106,297 48,889,575

40.4 Capital risk management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business, sustain the development of the business and maximize the
shareholders’ value. The Company closely monitors the return on capital. The Company manages its
capital structure and makes adjustment to it in light of changes in economic conditions and nances its
activities through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view to maintain an
approximate mix between various sources of nance to minimize the risk. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes during the year ended 30 June 2017.       

The Company is not exposed to externally imposed capital requirement.

41. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability can be settled, between
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. The carrying values of all nancial assets
and liabilities re ected in the nancial statements approximate their fair values.  

The following table shows nancial instruments recognised at fair value, analysed between those whose
fair value is based on:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2: Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and

Level 3: Those whose inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market date
(unobservable inputs). 

As of the balance sheet date, the Company does not have any nancial instruments measured at fair value.  
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42. OPERATING SEGMENTS

For management purposes, the Company has determined following reportable operating segments on
the basis of business activities i.e. oil re ning and petroleum marketing. Oil re ning business is engaged
in crude oil re ning and selling of re ned petroleum products to oil marketing companies. Petroleum
marketing business is engaged in trading of petroleum products, procuring products from oil re ning
business as well as from other sources. The quantitative data for segments is given below:    

Oil Re ning Business Petroleum Marketing 
Business

Total

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
--------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -------------------------------------

Revenue
Net Sales to external customers 53,173,101 47,411,465 35,399,480 30,290,702 88,572,581 77,702,167
Inter-segment sales 33,468,337 27,419,742 80,479 - 33,548,816 27,419,742
Eliminations (33,468,337) (27,419,742) (80,479) - (33,548,816) (27,419,742)
Total revenue 53,173,101 47,411,465 35,399,480 30,290,702 88,572,581 77,702,167

Result
Segment pro t 3,473,299 2,668,690 804,324 1,048,270 4,277,623 3,716,960
Unallocated expenses:
Finance cost (2,439,972) (2,535,445)
Interest income 537,134 514,500
Other expenses (1,107,223 ) (978,393)
Taxation 854,675 649,876
Pro t for the year 2,122 ,237 1,367,498

Segmental Assets 112,4 94,040 54,459,089 1,362,030 1,434,660 113,8 56,070 55,893,749
Unallocated Assets -

112,4 94,040 54,459,089 1,362,030 1,434,660 113,8 56,070 55,893,749

Segmental Liabilities 86,758,418 48,142,536 1,161,907 1,195,784 87,920,325 49,338,320
Unallocated Liabilities -

86,758,418 48,142,536 1,161,907 1,195,784 87,920,325 49,338,320

Capital expenditure 3,584,259 61,942 8,576 2,249 3,592,835 64,191

Other Information
Depreciation and amortization 2,731,658 1,159,076 37,192 37,643 2,768,850 1,196,719

43. PROVIDENT FUND DISCLOSURE

The Company operates approved funded contributory provident fund for both its management and non-
management employees. Details of net assets and investments based on the unaudited nancial
statements of the fundis as follows:

30 June
2017

30 June
2016

-----(Rupees in ’000)-----

Size of the fund -Net assets 255,733 130,997
Fair value of the investment 214,271 128,885
Percentage of the investment 83.79% 98.39%
Cost of the investment made 213,164 111,908

Break-up of fair value of investments in terms of amount and as percentage of the size of the fund is as follows: 

2017 2016
(Rupees in '000) % (Rupees in '000) %

Bank Deposits 110,35 7 43.15 % 39,846 30.42%
Debt securities 4,398 1.72% 24,881 18.99%
Government securities 19,709 7.71 % - -
Unit trust schemes 79,807 31.21 % 64,158 48.98%

214,2 71 83.79% 128,885 98.39%

The management, based on the un-audited nancial statements of the fund, is of the view that the
investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 227 of
the repealed Ordinance and the rules formulated for this purpose.  
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44. CAPACITY AND ANNUAL PRODUCTION

Against the designed annual capacity (based on 330 days) of 51.15 million barrels (30 June 2016: 11.55
million barrels), the actual throughput during the year was 8.402 million barrels (30 June 2016: 8.362
million barrels). The Company operated the plant considering the level which gives optimal yield of
products.   

45. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees as at 30 June 2017 were 700 (30 June 2016: 291) and average number
of employees were 496 (30 June 2016: 324). 

46. RECLASSIFICATION

Following corresponding gures have been reclassi ed for better presentation:

From To (Rupees in ‘000’)

Trade and other payables Advance from customers 670,263
Selling and distribution expenses Turnover-net 1,731,707

47. GENERAL

47.1 Figures have been rounded o  to the nearest thousand rupees, unless otherwise stated.

47.2 Comparative gures of these unconsolidated nancial statements comprise the gures of the Compay
only i.e. Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited as more fully explained in note 1.2 to these unconsolidated

nancial statements. 

48. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These unconsolidated nancial statements were authorised for issue on December 20, 2017 by the
Board of Directors of the Company.

Syed Arshad Raza
Director

Amir Abbassciy
Chief Executive 

Naeem Asghar Malik
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Auditors’ Report on Consolidated
Financial Statements to the Members

We have audited the annexed consolidated nancial statements comprising consolidated balance sheet of
Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited (the Holding Company) and its subsidiary company as at 30 June 2017
and the related consolidated pro t and loss account, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated cash ow statement and consolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes
forming part thereof, for the year then ended. We have also expressed separate opinions on the nancial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company namely Byco Isomerisation Pakistan 
(Private) Limited (BIPL).    

These nancial statements are the responsibility of the Holding Company’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these consolidated nancial statements based on our audit. 

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing and accordingly
included such tests of accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances.  

Certain expenses aggregating to Rs. 4,192.303 million have been capitalized by the Holding Company which
do not meet the criteria for the recognition of assets and have not been incurred in respect of qualifying
assets. These expenses include exchange losses and interest expenses, aggregating to Rs. 1,493.232
million, incurred on certain foreign currency borrowings, equity arrangement fee and shares issuance cost
aggregating to Rs. 620.845 million, production loss of Rs. 546.490 million incurred on crude oil used by the
Company, loss of Rs. 772.466 million on the write down of stock in trade item and guaranteed throughput
cost of Rs. 759.270 million.     

Had the above capitalization not been done, the cost of property, plant and equipment and net equity as of
30 June 2017, would have been lower by Rs. 4,016.929 million and pro t for the year would have been
higher by Rs. 60.199 million.  

In our opinion, except for the possible e ects of matter stated above, the consolidated nancial statements
present fairly the nancial position of Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited (the Holding Company) and its
subsidiary company as at 30 June 2017 and the results of their operations for the year then ended.  

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated nancial statements which states that the Group has
accumulated losses as at 30 June 2017 amounting to Rs. 26,866.160 million and its current liabilities exceed
its current assets by Rs. 36,449.341 million.These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast signi cant doubt about the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not
quali ed in respect of this matter.    

Chartered Accountants
Audit Engangement Partner:
Riaz A. Rehman Chamdia
Karachi

December 20, 2017
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
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Note 2017 2016
ASSETS ----------Rupees in '000----------

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 5 88,479,753 35,652,029
Intangible asset 6          - 23,746
Long-term loans and advances 7 1,777,936 1,753,780
Long-term deposits 8 16,956 31,332

90,274,645 37,460,887

CURRENT ASSETS
Stores and spares 483,884 293,689
Stock-in-trade 9 12,582,849 7,331,755
Trade debts 10 4,858,318 8,278,080
Loans and advances 11 226,064 555,535
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 12 13,173 53,217
Other receivables 13 1,467,442 1,276,715
Accrued interest 237,951 353,193
Cash and bank balances 14 249,577 240,532

20,119,258 18,382,716

TOTAL ASSETS 110,393,903 55,843,603

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital 15 53,298,847 9,778,587
Merger reserves (21,303,418)
Accumulated losses (26,866,160) (25,469,576)

5,129,269 (15,690,989)
Contribution against future issue of shares 16 761,129          -

5,890,398 (15,690,989)

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT
    AND EQUIPMENT 17 13,254,699 13,490,917

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term nancing and mark-up 1 8 24,718,476 12,170,263
Loans from related parties 1 9 6,110,417 -
Long-term deposits 20 172,375 130,978
Deferred liabilities 21 3,678,939 5,027,609

34,680,207 17,328,850
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 22 41,878,245 26,906,629
Advance from customer 23 2,472,871 670,263
Accrued mark-up 24 564,213 194,643
Short-term borrowings 25 3,371,784 6,940,999
Current portion of long-term nancing and mark-up 26 7,932,304 5,596,765
Current portion of liabilities against assets subject to nance lease            - 4,362
Taxation–net 349,182 401,164

56,568,599 40,714,825

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 27
              110,393,903 55,843,603

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated nancial statements.

Syed Arshad Raza
Director

Amir Abbassciy
Chief Executive 

Naeem Asghar Malik
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Consolidated Pro t and Loss Account
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 2017 2016
----------Rupees in '000----------

Turnover–net 28 88,572,580 78,356,698

Cost of sales 29 (84,876,720) (75,235,149)

Gross pro t 3,695,860 3,121,549

Administrative expenses 30 (817,947) (693,612)
Selling and distribution expenses 31 (602,701) (694,431)
Other expenses 32 (1,108,206) (980,367)
Other income 33 1,616,079 1,557,281

(912,775) (811,129)

Operating pro 2,783,085 2,310,420

Finance costs 34 (2,439,972) (2,778,621)

Pro t / (loss) before taxation 343,113 (468,201)

Taxation 35 1,059,591 854,526

Pro after taxation 1,402,704 386,325

-------------Rupees------------

Earnings per ordinary share – basic and diluted 36 0.26 0.40

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated nancial statements.

Syed Arshad Raza
Director

Amir Abbassciy
Chief Executive 

Naeem Asghar Malik
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income
For the year ended 30 June 2017

2017 2016
----------Rupees in '000----------

Pro t after taxation 1,402,704 386,325

Other comprehensive income for the year

Items that may not be reclassi ed subsequently to pro t and 
loss account

Actuarial loss on remeasurement of de ned bene t obligation (21,505) (51)

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,381,199 386,274

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated nancial statements.

Syed Arshad Raza
Director

Amir Abbassciy
Chief Executive 

Naeem Asghar Malik
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 2017 2016
---------Rupees in '000----------

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Pro t/Loss before taxation 343,113 (468,201)
Adjustments for non-cash items and other charges:
Depreciation 5.1.4 3,641,747 2,471,021
Finance cost 34 2,439,972 2,778,621
Provision for doubtful debts 10.3 748,522 680,548
Provision for gratuity 21.2.6 54,375 22,348
Interest income 33 (537,134) (756,159)
Gain on disposal of operating xed assets - (3,044)
Net cash ows before working capital changes 6,690,595 4,725,134

Movement in working capital
Decrease/(Increase) in current assets

Stores and spares (54,420) (14,493)
Stock-in-trade (4,915,388) (2,472,140)
Trade debts 2,044,537 168,658
Loans and advances 533,217 127,894
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 41,215 (9,019)
Other receivables (1,163,244) 384,236

(3,514,083) (1,814,864)
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities

Trade and other payables 10,898,013 (4,406,882)

Cash generated from / (used in) operations 14,074,525 (1,496,612)

Finance costs paid (273,256) (1,089,108)
Income taxes paid (412,697) (659,018)
Gratuity paid (15,649) (18,000)
Interest income received 120,552 178,730

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 13,493,475 (3,084,008)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed capital expenditure (3,592,835) (153,110)
Proceeds from disposal of operating xed assets - 6,037
Long-term deposits–net 70,021 21,736
Advance against investment in shares (125,000) (135,000)
Transaction cost received - 446,037

Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (3,647,814) 185,700

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long-term nancing –net 981,121 (1,227,334)
Short-term borrowings –net (10,065,138) 3,676,087
Liabilities against assets subject to nance lease–net (4,362) (2,338)

Net cash (used in) /generated from nancing activities (9,088,379) 2,446,415

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (757,282) (451,893)
Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year 240,532 692,425
Transfer upon merger (833,673)            -
Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year (1,350,423) 240,532

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated nancial statements.

Syed Arshad Raza
Director

Amir Abbassciy
Chief Executive 

Naeem Asghar Malik
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Issued, 
subscribed 
and paid-up 

capital

Merger 
reserve

Accumulated 
loss

Total

Contributi
on against 

future 
issue of 
shares

Shareholder’s 
equity and 

contribution 
against future 

issue of 
shares

------------------------------------(Rupees in ‘000)  ---------------------------------

Balance as at 01 July 2015 9,778,587 - (26,839,084) (17,060,497) - (17,060,497)

Net pro t for the year - - 386,325 386,325 - 386,325

Other comprehensive income for the
year - - (51) (51) - (51)

Total comprehensive income for the
year - - 386,274 386,274 - 386,274

Incremental depreciation relating to
surplus on revaluation of property,
equipment – net of deferred tax  - - 983,234 983,234 - 983,234

Balance as at 30 June 2016 9,778,587 - (25,469,576) (15,690,989) - (15,690,989)

Balance as at 01 July 2016 9,778,587 - (25,469,576) (15,690,989) - (15,690,989)

Cancellation of shares held
by BOPL (7,905,101) - - (7,905,101) - (7,905,101)

Issue of shares pursuant to merger 51,425,361 - - 51,425,361 - 51,425,361

Transfer upon merger - - (3,757,751) (3,757,751) 761,129 (2,996,622)

Merger reserve - (21,303,418) - (21,303,418) - (21,303,418)

Net pro t for the year - - 1,402,704 1,402,704 - 1,402,704

Other comprehensive income for the
year - - (21,505) (21,505) - (21,505)

Total comprehensive income for the
year - - 1,381,199 1,381,199 - 1,381,199

Incremental depreciation relating to 
surplus on revaluation of property, 
equipment – net of deferred tax - - 979,968 979,968 - 979,968

Balance as at 30 June 2017 53,298,847 (21,303,418) (26,866,160) 5,129,269 761,129 5,890,398

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated nancial statements.

Syed Arshad Raza
Director

Amir Abbassciy
Chief Executive 

Naeem Asghar Malik
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2017

1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1 The "Group" consists of:

Holding Company

i) Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited (the Holding Company)

The Holding Company was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company on 09 January 1995
under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the repealed Ordinance) and was granted a certi cate of
commencement of business on 13 March 1995. The shares of the Holding Company are listed on Pakistan
Stock Exchange. The registered o ce of the Holding Company is situated at The Harbour Front, 9th Floor,
Dolmen City, HC-3, Block 4, Marine Drive, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan.    

The Holding Company currently operates two business segments namely Oil Re nery Business and
Petroleum Marketing Business. The Holding Company commenced its Oil Re ning Business in 2004. The
re neries have a rated capacity of 155,000 bpd (barrels per day). Petroleum Marketing Business was
formally launched in 2007 and has 300 retail outlets across the country.   

The Board of Directors (the Board) of the Holding Company in a meeting held on 14 April 2016 considered
and approved in principle merger of the Holding Company Company, its wholly owned subsidiary Byco
Terminals Pakistan Limited (BTPL) and its than Parent Company, Byco Oil Pakistan Limited (BOPL) in
accordance with terms of a scheme of arrangement prepared under the provisions of Section 284 to
Section 288 of the repealed Ordinance. During the year, the High Court of Sindh through its order dated 19
January 2017 sanctioned the scheme. Hence, e ective 01 July 2016, BOPL and BTPL have ceased to
exist as legal entities.     

Pursuant to this sanction, the entire business of BTPL and BOPL including its properties, assets, liabilities
and rights and obligations vested into the Company. Further, as per the scheme, the Holding Company
issued and allotted 5,142,536,068 fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each to the registered shareholders
of BOPL in May 2017 in the ratio of 1.67 ordinary share of the Holding Company for each ordinary share of
BOPL as per the swap ratio determined by the Holding Company’s Advisor. These shares will rank pari
passu with the existing shares of the Holding Company. Post merger, the Holding Company is now a direct
subsidiary of Byco Industries Incorporated (BII), Mauritius (the Parent Company) which holds 91.83%
shares (4,894,520,196 shares) in the Holding Company.     

This merger was accounted for in the books of the holding Company using 'pooling of interest' method as it 
was a business combination of entities under common control and therefore, scoped out of IFRS 3 
‘Business Combinations’. The net assets of BOPL and BTPL have been incorporated at their net carrying 
amount in the books as on 01 July 2016 and the di erence in value of the net assets and shares as issued 
above has  been carried in equity under the head ‘Merger Reserve’.

Subsidiary Company

i) Byco Isomerisation Pakistan (Private) Limited (BIPL)

BIPL was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company on 14 May 2014 under the repealed
Ordinance and it is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Holding Company. The registered o ce of BIPL
is situated at Rooms 406 and 407, 4th Floor, Islamabad Stock Exchange Towers, 55-B, Jinnah Avenue,
Islamabad. BIPL is principally engaged in blending, re ning and processing of petroleum naphtha to
produce petroleum products such as premium motor gasoline

2. GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION

As at 30 June 2017, the Group’s accumulated losses amounted to Rs. 26,866.160 million (30 June 2016: Rs.
25,469.576) million. Moreover, current liabilities of the Group exceeded its current assets by Rs. 36,449.341
million (30 June 2016: Rs. 22,332.109 million) and as a result of the liquidity constraints, the Group may face
di culties in meeting the covenants relating to its nancings.  

These consolidated nancial statements have been prepared using the going concern assumption as the
management is con dent that all these conditions are temporary, and would reverse in foreseeable future due
to the reasons given below:  

- the Group earned a pro t after tax amounting to Rs. 1,402.704  million (operating pro t: 3.14%) for the
year as compared to Rs. 386.325 million (operating pro t: 2.95%) last year, showing signi cant
improvement in the Group’s pro tability as compared to last year

- the sales volume of high margin products through marketing arm of the Group has increased by 59%
showing improvement in the Group’s performance as compared to last year; 
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- The Holding Company has executed a restructuring plan resulting in a merger of BTPL and BOPL with
and into the Company which has been fully explained in note 1.1 to these consolidated nancial
statements. This arrangement is expected to bring in e ciencies and synergies, which would enable the
holding Company to minimize its operational and administrative costs;   

- the larger re nery unit of the Group re-commissioned its operations subsequent to the year end (August
2017) which is expected to enhance the throughput of the Group from 25,459 barrels per day to 155,000
barrels per day in the upcoming years. Further, this will also increase the pro tability of the Group in the
future years;   

- the Group’s Petroleum Marketing Business (PMB) has entered into various fuel supply arrangements
with di erent marketable sectors such as shipping, power and energy. High margin aviation fuel export
market has also been tapped through these arrangements. These factors of PMB segment have been
and are expected to yield signi cant contribution towards the pro tability of the Group;   

- the Parent Company of the Holding Company has also given its commitment to provide nancial support
as and when required. The support is available during the next nancial year and beyond that; and 

- the management has also prepared nancial projections to demonstrate the nancial bene ts of above
measures. 

The results of the above e orts, activities and actions are expected to contribute signi cantly towards the
pro tability, cost reduction, cash ows and equity position of the Group and mitigate the risks involved,
therefore, the preparation of consolidated nancial statements on going concern assumption is justi ed.
However, the conditions stated above, indicate existence of material uncertainty which may cast signi cant
doubt about the Group's ability to continue as going concern.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1 Statement of compliance

These consolidated nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. As per the requirements of circular No. 23/2017 dated 04 October 2017
issued by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), companies whose nancial year
closes on or before 31 December 2017 shall prepare their nancial statements in accordance with the
provisions of the repealed Ordinance. Accordingly, approved accounting standards comprise of such
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP) as are noti ed under the repealed Ordinance, provisions of and directives issued under the
repealed Ordinance. In case requirements di er, the provisions of or directives under the repealed Ordinance
shall prevail.        

3.2 Accounting convention

These consolidated nancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for:

- Certain classes of property, plant and equipment which are carried at revalued amountin accordance
with IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment” as disclosed in note 5.1to these consolidated nancial
statements; and

- De ned bene t gratuity plan which is carried at present value of de ned bene t obligation net of fair value
of plan assets in accordance with the requirements of IAS 19 "Employee Bene ts", as disclosed in note
21.2 to the consolidated nancial statements;

3.3 Basis of consolidation

These consolidated nancial statements include the nancial statements of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies, here-in-after referred to as “the Group”. 

A company is a subsidiary, if an entity (the Holding Company) directly or indirectly controls, bene cially owns
or holds more than fty percent of its voting securities or otherwise has power to elect and appoint more than

fty percent of its directors.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date when such control ceases. 

The nancial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Holding
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been
changed to conform with accounting policies of the Group, where required. 
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All intra-group balances, transactions and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions
and dividends are eliminated in full.

The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiary companies are consolidated on a line by line basis
and carrying value of investments held by the Holding Company is eliminated against the subsidiary companies’
shareholders’ equity in the consolidated nancial statements.  

3.4 Adoption of amended standards

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated nancial statements are consistent 
with those of the previous nancial year except as describe below:

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments

The Group has adopted the following accounting standard and the amendments of IFRSs which became
e ective for the current year: 

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities and IAS 27
Separate Financial Statements – Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception (Amendment)
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements – Accounting for Acquisition of Interest in Joint Operation (Amendment)
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements -Disclosure Initiative (Amendment)
IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38  intangible assets -Clari cation of Acceptable Method of
Depreciation and Amortization (Amendment)
IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements –Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements (Amendment) 

The adoption of the above accounting standards did not have any material e ect on the consolidated nancial
statements. 

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet e ective 

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards
as applicable in Pakistan would be e ective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard
or interpretation:  

Standard or Interpretation
ective date (annual 

periods beginning on or 
after)

IFRS 2  –     Share-based Payments –Classi cation and Measurement of Share -
         based Payments Transactions (Amendments)  

01 January 2018

IFRS 10  –    Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investment in Associates
         and Joint Ventures-Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
         and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendment)    Not yet nalized

IAS 7  –     Statement of Cash Flows -Disclosure Initiative (Amendment)  01 January 2017

IAS 12   –     Income Taxes – Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized losses
          (Amendments) 

01 January 2017

IFRS 4   –     Insurance Contracts: Applying IFRS 9Financial Instruments with IFRS 4
          Insurance Contracts – (Amendments)  

01 January 2018

IAS 40   –     Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments) 01 January 2018

IFRIC 22 –    Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 01 January 2018

IFRIC 23 –    Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 01 January 2019

The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the consolidated
nancial statements in the period of initial application.

In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting standards have
also been issued by the IASB in December 2016. Such improvements are generally e ective for accounting 
periods beginning on or after 01 January 2018. The Group expects that such improvements to the standards
will not have any material impact on the consolidated nancial statements in the period of initial application.  



ANNUAL REPORT    2016/17 72

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be noti ed by the SECP for the
purpose of applicability in Pakistan. 

Standard or Interpretation
IASB ective date 

(annual periods 
beginning on or after)

IFRS 9    –    Financial Instruments: Classi cation and Measurement 01 January 2018
IFRS 17  –    Insurance Contracts 01 January 2021
IFRS 15  –    Revenue from Contracts with Customers 01 January 2018
IFRS 16  –    Leases 01 January 2019

Subsequent to the year ended 30 June 2017, SECP vide S.R.O. 007(1) / 2017 dated 04 October  2017, has
noti ed the adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 for annual periods beginning on or after 01 July 2018. The Group
is in the process of assessing the impact of the adoption of these standards.  

3.5 Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of these consolidated nancial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards,
as applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that a ects
the application of policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about
the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may di er from these estimates. The estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision a ects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision a ects both
current and future periods.     
Judgments and estimates made by the management that may have a signi cant risk of material adjustments
to the consolidated nancial statements in the subsequent years are as follows: 

i) Useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment (note 4.1 and 5.1);
ii) Provision for slow moving and obsolete stock-in-trade (note 4.2 and 9);
iii) Provision for doubtful debts and other receivables (note 4.4 and 10. 3);
iv) Impairment against other nancial and non- nancial assets (note 4.7);
v) Estimates of receivables and payables in respect of sta  retirement bene t schemes (note 4.10 and 

21.2);
vi) Provision for compensated absences (note 4.11);
vii) Provision for taxation (note 4.14, 21.1 and 35); and
viii) Contingencies (note 27.1).

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Property, plant and equipment 

Owned

These are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any, except for freehold land, leasehold land, building on freehold land, roads and civil
works, plant and machinery, generators and safety and lab equipments are measured at revalued amounts,
which is the fair value at the date of revaluation less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any, recognised subsequent to the date of revaluation. The surplus arising on revaluation is
disclosed as surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment.    

Depreciation / amortization is charged to consolidated pro t and loss account, applying the straight line method
whereby costs of assets, less their residual values, is written o  over their estimated useful lives at rates as
disclosed in note 5.1 to the consolidated nancial statements. Depreciation / amortization on additions is
charged from the month in which the asset is available for use up to the month preceding the disposal.

The carrying values of the Group’s property plant and equipment are reviewed at each nancial year end for
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
If any such indication exists, and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the
assets are written down to their recoverable amount.   

Repairs and maintenance cost is written o  to the consolidated pro t and loss account in the year in which it
is incurred. Major renewals and improvements are capitalized when it is probable that respective future
economic bene ts will ow to the Group.  
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An item of property plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic bene ts
are expected from its use or disposal. Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is recognised
in the year of disposal.  

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress, is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost consists of:

- expenditures incurred for the acquisition of the speci c asset, dismantling, refurbishment, 
construction and installation of the asset so acquired. 

- borrowing cost and exchange di erences arising on foreign currency nancings to the extent these are
regarded as adjustment to interest costs for qualifying assets if its recognition criteria is met as
mentioned in note 4.18to the consolidated nancial statements.

- exchange loss, interest expenses and other expenses.

- trial run cost of testing the asset. If the income from the testing activity is higher than the cost of 
testing the asset, then the net e ect will be a deduction from the cost of the asset.

Assets subject to nance lease

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and bene ts incidental to ownership of
the leased item, are stated at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Lease payments are
apportioned between the nance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.   

Leased assets are depreciated over the useful lives of the assets. However, if there is no reasonable certainty
that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of
the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term. Depreciation, repair and maintenance and gain/loss
on disposal of assets subject to nance lease is recognised in the same manner as for owned assets.   

4.2 Stock-in-trade

All stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of cost and net Realizable Value (NRV).

Raw materials

Cost in relation to crude oil is determined on the basis of First-In-First-Out (FIFO) basis. NRVin relation to crude
oil represents replacement cost at the balance sheet date. 

Finished products

Cost of nished products comprises of the cost of crude oil and re ning charges consisting of direct expenses and
appropriate production overheads. Direct expenses are arrived at on the basis of average cost for the year per
barrel of throughput. Production overheads, including depreciation / amortization, are allocated to throughput
proportionately on the basis of actual throughput.   

NRV in relation to nished products is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated cost of completion and estimated cost necessary to make the sale. 

4.3 Stores and spares

These are stated at moving average cost less impairment loss, if any. For items which are slow moving and /
or identi ed as surplus to the Group's requirements, adequate provision is made for any excess book value
over estimated realizable value. The Group reviews the carrying amount of the stores and spares on a regular
basis and provision is made for obsolescence.   

Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving items where necessary and is recognised in the consolidated
pro t and loss account. 

4.4 Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are stated at original invoice amount less provision for doubtful debts, if any.
Provision for doubtful debts / other receivables is based on the management’s assessment of customers
outstanding balances and credit worthiness. Bad debts are written - o  when identi ed.
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4.5 Trade deposits and short-term prepayments

These are initially recognised at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given. Subsequent to initial
recognition assessment is made at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is an indication that a

nancial asset or group of assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the estimated recoverable amount of
that asset or group of assets is determined and any impairment loss is recognised for the di erence between the
recoverable amount and the carrying value.   

4.6 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost. For the purposes of cash ow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash in hand, balances with banks and running nance facilities

4.7 Impairment

Financial assets

A nancial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective  evidence that it is
impaired. A nancial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events
have had a negative e ect on the estimated future cash ows of that asset.  

Individually signi cant nancial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining nancial
assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics. 

All impairment losses are recognised in the pro t and loss account. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal
can be related objectively to an event accruing after the impairment loss was recognised. 

Non- nancial assets

The carrying amounts of non- nancial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is
any indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated to determine
the extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the consolidated pro t and
loss account. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and value-in-use. Value-
in-use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash ows using adiscount rate that re ects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk speci c to the assets. For the purpose of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there areseparately identi able cash

ows (cash-generating units).      

An impairment loss is reversed if there is a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.  

4.8 Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

The surplus arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is credited to the “Surplus on revaluation
of property, plant and equipment ” shown below equity in the balance sheet in accordance with the
requirements of section 235 of the repealed Ordinance, 1984. The said section was amended through the
Companies (Amendment) Ordinance, 2002. The Group has adopted following accounting treatment of
depreciation / amortization on revalued assets, in accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan’s (SECP) SRO 45(1)/2003 dated 13 January 2003:

- depreciation / amortization on assets which are revalued is determined with reference to the value
assigned to such assets on revaluation and depreciation / amortization charge for the year is taken to
the consolidated pro t and loss account; and  

- an amount equal to incremental depreciation / amortization for the year net of deferred taxation is
transferred from “Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment” to accumulated loss
through Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity to record realization of surplus to the extent of
the  incremental depreciation / amortization charge for the year. 

Upon disposal, any revaluation surplus relating to the asset being disposed is transferred to accumulated pro t.
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4.9 Mark-up bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less directly
attributable transaction costs. 

Loans and borrowings are subsequently stated at amortized cost with any di erence between the proceeds
(net of transaction cost) and the redemption value recognised in the consolidated pro t and loss account over
the period of the borrowing using the e ective interest method. 

4.10 Sta  retirement bene ts

4.10.1 De ned bene t plan

The Group operates a funded gratuity scheme covering all its permanent employees who have completed
minimum qualifying period of service. The Group’s obligation under the scheme is determined through
actuarial valuations carried out under the "Projected Unit Credit Method". The latest actuarial valuation was
carried out at 30 June 2017 and based on the actuarial valuation, the Group had recognised the liability for
retirement bene ts and the corresponding expenses. Actuarial gains and losses that arise are recognised in
other comprehensive income in the year in which they arise. Past service costs are recognised immediately in
the consolidated pro t and loss account irrespective of the fact that the bene ts are vested or non-vested.
Current service costs and any past service costs together with the e ect of the unwinding of the discount on
plan liabilities are charged to operating expenses.        

The amount recognised in the consolidated balance sheet represents the present value of de ned bene t
obligation as reduced by the fair value of plan assets. 

4.10.2 De ned contribution plan

The Group operates a provident fund scheme for all its eligible employees. Equal contributions are made by
the Group and the employees at 8.33% of the basic salary of the eligible employees. 

4.11 Compensated absences

The Group accounts for the liability in respect of employees’ compensated absences in the year in which
these are earned. Provisions to cover the obligation are made using the current salary levels of the
employees. No actuarial valuation of compensated absences is carried out as the management considers
that the nancial impact is not material.

4.12 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to
be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Group. 

4.13 Ijarah contracts

Leases under Shariah compliant Ijarah contracts, where signi cant portion of the risk and reward of ownership
is retained by the lessor, are classi ed as Ijarah. Rentals under these arrangements are charged to pro t and
loss account on straight line basis over the lease term.  

4.14 Taxation

Current

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation in accordance with
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary di erences arising at the
balance sheet date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for nancial
reporting purposes.  

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary di erences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary di erences to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable
pro ts will be available against which the assets may be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the related tax bene t will be realized.  

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.  
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4.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, if it is probable that an out ow of resources embodying economic bene ts will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to re ect the current best estimate.   

4.16 Liabilities and nance charges against assets subject to nance lease

Liabilities against assets subject to nance lease are accounted for at net present value of minimum payments
under the lease arrangements. Lease payments are apportioned between nance costs and reduction of lease
liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Financial costs are
charged directly to the consolidated pro t and loss account except those which are directly attributable to the
acquisition and installation of a qualifying asset (refer note 4.1).

4.17 Contribution against future issuance of shares

Foreign currency amounts received in cash as contribution against future issuance of shares from the Parent
Company is stated at the rates at which these were received. Foreign currency payments by the Parent Company
directly to foreign suppliers of plant and machinery / foreign dismantling and refurbishment service providers are 
nitially stated at Pak Rupees equivalent amount translated at the rates approximating to those ruling on the date
of transaction. Thereafter, these are revalued and stated at the average of Pak Rupees exchange rates quoted
by selected authorised dealers approximating to those ruling on the dates the related plant and machinery items
are received in Pakistan (i.e. the date of the bill of entry as per the requirements of Foreign Exchange Manual 2002).
However, where the related plant and machinery items have not yet been received by the Group, these
payments are translated at the year-end exchange rate equivalents.        

4.18 Borrowings and related costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or installation of qualifying assets, that
necessarily take substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, are capitalized as a part of cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for intended use. All other borrowing costs
are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with borrowing of funds and exchange di erence arising on foreign
currency fundings to the extent those are regarded as adjustment to the interest cost, net of related interest
income, if any.    

4.19 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic bene ts will ow to the Group and revenue
can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is
recognised on the following basis:

- Sales are recognised when the signi cant risk and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to
the customer which coincide with the dispatch of goods to the customers. 

- Export sales are recognised on the basis of product shipped to the customers.

- Handling and storage income, pipeline charges, rental income and other services income is recognised
on accrual basis. 

- Blending, re ning and processing of petroleum naphtha to produce petroleum products and other services
income is recognized on accrual basis.

4.20 Other income

Other income is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic bene ts will ow to the Group and
amount can be measured reliably. Other income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and is recognised on the following basis:  

-       Mark-up on delayed payments charges are recognised on the time proportionate basis.

-       Interest income / mark - up on short term deposits and interest bearing advances are recognised on 
the proportionate basis.

- Handling income including income from gantry operations and pipeline charges are recognised on an 
accrual basis.

- Scrap sales and rental income are recognised on an accrual basis.

- Gain on disposal is recognised at the time of diposal of operating xed assets.
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4.21 Foreign currency translations

Foreign currency transactions during the period are recorded at the exchange rates approximating those ruling
on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of
exchange which approximate those prevailing on the balance sheet date. Gains and losses on translation are
taken to the consolidated pro t and loss account.

4.22 Financial instruments

All nancial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value, and subsequently re-measured at fair value or
amortized cost as the case may be. The Group derecognises the nancial assets and nancial liabilities when it
ceases to be a party to such contractual provisions of the instrument

4.23 O setting of nancial assets and nancial liabilities

Financial assets and nancial liabilities are o set and the net amount is reported in the consolidated nancial
statements only when there is legally enforceable right to set-o  the recognised amounts and Group intends
either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.

4.24 Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identi ed as Chief Executive O cer of the Group.

4.25 Dividends and appropriations

Dividends and reserve appropriations are recognised in the year in which these are declared / approved. The
distribution of dividend is subject to the covenant as mentioned in note 18.2.to these consolidated nancial
statements.  

4.26 Functional and presentation currency 

These nancial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee, which is the Group’s functional and presentation
currency. 

4.27 Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the pro t after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Holding Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.  

4.28 Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in consolidated pro t or loss as incurred.    

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the 
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identi able assets acquired and the liabilities 
assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identi able assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests 
in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is 
recognised immediately in pro t and loss as a bargain purchase gain.

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Note 2017 2016

-----------Rupees in '000--------

Operating xed assets 5.1 54,435,781 35,216,520
Capital work-in-progress 5.2 34,043,972 435,509

88,479,753 35,652,029
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5.1.1 The Holding Company's assets located at lling stations are not in possession of the Group. In view of large
number of dealers, the management considers it impractical to disclose particulars of assets not in possession
of the Group as required under para 5 of part I of the Fourth Schedule to the repealed Ordinance, 1984. 

5.1.2 During the year, revaluation exercise was carried out by an independent valuer, resulting in surplus on
revaluation amounting to Rs. 743.750 million. The fair values were determined with reference to market based
evidence, based on active market prices and relevant enquiries and information as considered necessary,
adjusted for any di erence in nature, location or condition of the speci c property and in case where market
based evidence was not available or not applicable due to the specialized nature of asset, then it was based
on depreciated replacement cost method.    

5.1.3 Had there been no revaluation, the net book value of speci c classes of operating xed assets would have
amounted to:

Note 2017 2016
---------Rupees in '000--------

Freehold land 50,654 50,654
Leasehold land 213,200 213,200
Buildings on freehold land, roads and civil works 1,142,762 805,957
Building on leasehold land 60,555             -
Plant and machinery 29,637,985 9,908,524
Generators 94,328 55,975

31,199,484 11,034,310

5.1.4 Depreciation / amortization charge for the year has been
allocated as follows:

Cost of sales 29.1 3,520,678 2,378,726
Administrative expenses 30 83,877 54,652
Selling and distribution expenses 31 37,192 37,643

3,641,747 2,471,021

5.2 Capital work-in-progress

The movement of capital work-in-progress during the year is as follows:

Transferred
to operating Closing balance

Opening
balance

Transfer 
upon 

merger
Additions xed assets 2017 2016

---------------------------(Rupees in ‘000) -------------------------------

Plant and machinery 426,505 30,432,300 3,212,959 (36,796) 34,034,968 426,505
Building on freehold land, 
roads and civil works 691 - - - 691 691
Filling stations 8,313 - - - 8,313 8,313

435,509 30,432,300 3,212,959 (36,796) 34,043,972 435,509

5.2.1 Plant and machinery amounting to USD 4 million (30 June 2016: Nil) is outside the country and is in the
process of being brought into the country.

5.2.2 Includes dismantling and refurbishment charges paid to-date by the sponsors in lieu of its equity contribution
in the Company as disclosed in note 18.2 to these consolidated nancial statements. 

5.3 Capitalization of borrowing costs amounting to Rs. 520.022 million (30 June 2016: Nil) have been
determined at the rate of 7.45% (30 June 2016: Nil) per annum. 

5.4 Plant and machinery include exchange di erence of Rs. 27.153 million (30 June 2016: Nil) representing
adjustment of interest cost.

Note 2017 2016
-------Rupees in '000-------

6. INTANGIBLE ASSET

Goodwill acquired on business combination 6.1             -             23,746 
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Note

Note

2017 2016
-------Rupees in '000-------

2017 2016
-------Rupees in '000-------

2017 2016
-------Rupees in '000-------

6.1 As fully explainednote 1.1, BTPL merged with the Holding Company. Accordingly, goodwill is eliminated in
these consolidated nancial statements.

7. LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES –
unsecured, considered good

Loan to Coastal Re nery Limited (CRL)
Advance against investment in shares

7.1 1,518,780 1,518,780
7.2 360,000 235,000

1,878,780 1,753,780
Current portion of CRL (100,844)             -

1,777,936 1,753,780

7.1 This includes nance provided by the Company to CRL for construction of the Buoy amounting to Rs. 830
million and a loan amounting to Rs. 688.78 million provided by the Company to CRL on the terms as fully
explained in 18.3 of these consolidated nancial statements.

7.2 Represents advance paid against the purchase of shares of CRL.

8. LONG-TERM DEPOSITS

Finance lease -      6,955
Ijarah nancing - 20,010
Rental premises 8.1 14,178 7,089
Central Depository Company of Pakistan           - 13
Others 2,778 4,220

16,956 38,287

Less: current portion of nance lease deposits             - (6,955)
16,956 31,332

8.1 Represents security deposit paid against o ce premises.

9. STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw material 9.1 & 9.2 6,784,377 2,389,729
Finished products 9.3, 9.4 & 9.5 5,798,472 4,942,026

12,582,849 7,331,755

9.1 This includes raw material in transit amounting to Rs. 4,032.88 million (30 June 2016: Rs. 1,492.395) as at
the balance sheet date. 

9.2 Raw material costing Rs. Nil (30 June 2016: Rs. 2,368.790) has been written down by Rs. Nil (30 June
2016: Rs.22.287) to Net Realizable Value. 

9.3 This includes nished product held by third parties and related party amounting to Rs. 1,033.413 million
(30 June 2016: Rs. 1,345.617 million) and Rs. 103.839 million (30 June 2016: Rs. 1,157.273 million) respectively,
as at the balance sheet date.

9.4 This includes nished product in transit amounting to Rs. Nil (30 June 2016: Rs. 729.435) as at the balance
sheet date. 

9.5 Finished products costing Rs. 3,589.267 million (30 June 2016: Rs. 1,327.639 million) has been written
down by Rs. 303.694 million (30 June 2016: Rs. 156.158 million) to Net Realizable Value.
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2017 2016
-------Rupees in '000-------

Note

Note

2017 2016
-------Rupees in '000-------10. TRADE DEBTS – unsecured

Considered good
Due from related parties:

- K-Electric Limited 10.1 224,068 196
- Standard Shipping Pakistan Limited             - 9,507
- Byco Oil Pakistan Limited 10.2             - 1,172,703

224,068 1,182,406

Others 4,634,250 7,095,674

Considered doubtful 3,621,901 2,873,379
8,480,219 11,151,459

Provision for doubtful debts 10.3 (3,621,901) (2,873,379)
4,858,318 8,278,080

10.1 There is no balance that is past due or impaired.

10.2 As fully explainedin note 1.1 to these consolidated nancial statements, BOPL hasmerged with and into
the Group. 

10.3 Provision for doubtful debts

Opening balance 2,873,379 2,192,831
Provision made during the year 32 748,522 680,548
Closing balance 3,621,901 2,873,379

11. LOANS AND ADVANCES – unsecured, considered good

Loan to employees 100 100
Advance to CRL 7.2 100,844 446,037
Advance to suppliers and contractors 125,120 109,398

226,064 555,535

12. TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT - TERM PREPAYMENTS

Current portion of nance lease deposits              - 6,955
Trade deposits              - 3,522
Margin against letters of credit              - 6,270

             - 16,747
Prepayments:

-    Insurance 3,065 33,858
-    Rent 10,108 2,612

13,173 53,217

13. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Inland Freight Equalization Margin 448,072 397,062
Receivable from CRL 13.1 994,232 550,518
Lease rentals due from BOPL 13.2                - 329,135
Due from related parties 13. 3 25,138                -

1,467,442 1,276,715

13.1 Represents expenses incurred by the Group on behalf of CRL. The outstanding balance is being adjusted
against the cost payable to CRL on account of usage of buoy. 

13.2 As fully explained in note 1.1 to these consolidated nancial statements, BOPL has merged with and into
the Group. 

13.3 Represents amount receivable from BII, the Parent Company, in respect of expenses incurred on behalf of
BII by the Company.
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2017 2016
-------Rupees in '000--------

2017 2016
-------Rupees in '000--------

2017 2016
-------(Number of Shares)--------

14. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 238 202

Cash at banks 
- Current accounts 112,108 137,813
- Saving / deposit accounts 14.1 &14.2 137,231 102,517

249,339 240,330

249,577 240,532

14.1 These carry interest at the rates ranging from 3.5% to 6.0% (30 June 2016:5.3 % to 8.2%) per annum.

14.2 This includes Rs. 2.205 million (30 June 2016: Rs. 5.254 million) kept under lien against letter of credit
facilities obtained from banks. 

15. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized share capital
6,000,000,000 1,200,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/-each 60,000,000 12,000,000

Issued, subscribed and 
paid-up capital

187,348,638 977,858,737 Issued for cash 1,873,486 9,778,587

5,142,536,068             -
Issued for consideration other than
cash 15.1 51,425,361

            -

5,329,884,706 977,858,737 53,298,847 9,778,587

15.1 As disclosed in note 1.1 to these consolidated nancial statements, the Holding Company has allotted
5,142,536,068 fully paid ordinary shares to the registered shareholders of BOPL pursuant to the merger and has
cancelled the shares previously issued for cash to BOPL.

Note

Note

Note

2017 2016

-----Rupees in '000-----

16. CONTRIBUTION AGAINST FUTURE ISSUE OF SHARES

From Byco Industries Incorporated (BII), the Parent Company 16.1, 16.2 & 
16.3 761,129                -

16.1 In respect of plant and machinery

Represents Rs. 406.400 million (30 June 2016: Rs. Nil) being rupee equivalent of US$ 4.0 million (30 June
2016: US$ Nil) representing part of the cost of plant, machinery purchased by the Company. 

Pursuant to a Share Subscription Agreement dated 31 August 2006 and amended vide an addendum dated 31
July 2007 entered into between the Holding Company and its sponsor, the sponsor has paid the above amount
to the supplier against the said assets in lieu of its equity contribution in the Holding Company for which Ordinary
Shares will be issued to it, at par, upon meeting the applicable requirements as mentioned in note 16.3 to these
consolidated nancial statements.

16.2 In respect of dismantling and refurbishment of Aromatic Plant:

This includes a sum of (i) Rs. 303.184 million (30 June 2016: Rs. Nil), being rupee equivalent of € 2.259 million
and £ 0.290 million (30 June 2016: € Nil and £ Nil) and (ii) Rs. 51.544 million (30 June 2016: Rs. Nil), being rupee
equivalent of US$ 0.507 million (30 June 2016: US$ Nil), representing the dismantling and refurbishment cost
respectively, of plant, machinery and equipment, paid to date by the sponsors in lieu of its equity contribution
in the Holding Company for which ordinary shares will be issued to it, at par, for consideration other than cash
upon meeting the applicable requirements as mentioned in note 16.3 to these consolidated nancial statements.
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2017 2016

-----Rupees in '000-----

16.3 Shares shall be issued to the Parent Company upon meeting the requirements of paragraph 7 of Chapter
XX of the Foreign Exchange Manual (FE Manual) and Rule 8 of the Companies (Issue of Capital) Rules,
1996 (1996 Rules).  

17. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, 
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Opening balance 20,257,875 21,687,674

Surplus on revaluation carried out during the year 5.1.2 743,750 -
Transfer to accumulated loss in respect of:

- incremental depreciation charged during the 
year - net of tax 979,968 (983,234)

- related deferred tax liability 419,986 (446,565)
1,399,954 (1,429,799)

19,601,671 20,257,875
Less: related deferred tax liability:

- on revaluation at the beginning of the year 6,766,958 7,213,523
- on incremental depreciation charged during the year (419,986) (446,565)

21.1 6,346,972 6,766,958

Closing balance 13,254,699 13,490,917

18. LONG-TERM FINANCING AND MARK-UP

Facilities Mark-up rate
Installments

Note Payment term Number Commencement 2017 2016
----(Rupees in ‘000)-----

Secured

Syndicate loan I
18.1 & 

18.2
Six months kibor

Semi-annually 16 June 2013 7,698,345 12,080,128

Syndicate loan II 18.1
Three months kibor + 
3.25% Semi-annually 12 January 2014 1,082,723          -

Syndicate loan III 18.3

8% per annum for the rst 
two years  from the date 
of disbursement and six 
months kibor or 12% 
whichever is lower for 
subsequent years 

Semi-annually 12 June 2017 686,306      688,780

Arrangement fee 18.3 - - - 65,484
 

40,603

Bilateral Loan  I 18.4 Six months kibor + 2.5% Semi-annually 09 June 2015 1,438,592 -

Bilateral Loan  II 18.4 - - - - - -

Bilateral Loan  III 18.4 Six months kibor + 2.75% Quarterly 14 February 2016 1,440,000 1,620,000

Bilateral Loan  IV 18.4 Six months kibor + 3.25% Semi-annually 04 August 2016 125,000 -

Bilateral Loan  V 18.4 Six months kibor + 3.5% Semi-annually 08 December 2015 95,833 -
12,632,283 14,429,511

Mark-up 7,539,492 3,337,517

Sukuk certi cates 18.5
Three months kibor + 
1.05% Quarterly 12 April 2019 3,120,000 -

Unsecured
Supplier’s credit 18.6 One year Libor + 1% Semi-annually 20 December 2021 1,628,768 -

Others 18.6
Nil to six months kibor + 
4% Semi-annually 05 December 2021 6,540,002 -

Mark-up 1,190,235 -
9,359,005 -

32,650,780 17,767,028

Current maturity (7,932,304) (5,596,765)
24,718,476 12,170,263

Note



ANNUAL REPORT    2016/17 85

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2017

18.1 Represent facilities availed from various banks and are secured against the Holding Company’s xed and
current assets. 

18.2 The loan agreement contains the covenant that the Holding Company cannot pay dividend to its
shareholders if an event of default is occurred. 

18.3 Represents syndicate facility including Musharaka facility availed from a commercial bank for the purpose
of acquiring shares of CRL. The facility is secured against charge on all present and future assets of CRL,
personal guarantees and personal properties of sponsors of CRL along with pledge of 80% shares of CRL.  

18.4 Represent bilateral loans availed from various banks and nancial institutions and are secured against the
Holding Company’s xed and current assets. 

18.5 Represent privately placed long-term Islamic certi cates (Sukuk) amounting to Rs. 3,120 million, issued by
the Holding Company during the year to meet the expansion plans of theHoldingCompany. This facility is
secured against xed assets (excluding land and building) of the Holding Company.  

18.6 The loans are inferior to the rights of present and future secured nancial institutions which are or may
be lender to the Holding Company. The loan ranks superior to any existing or future shareholder loans,
credits or advance made to the Holding Company by any of its shareholders.

Note

Note

Note

2017 2016

---------Rupees in '000-------19. LOANS FROM RELATED PARTIES – unsecured

At amortized cost

Byco Industries Incorporated, the Parent Company 19.1 6,110,417 -

19.1 Represents:

i) a foreign currency loan of USD 0.144 million which carries mark-up at the rate of LIBOR+1% per annum,
which was due on 22 June 2012 by a bullet payment. At the end of the current year, the applicable interest
rate is 2.7384% per annum.

ii) a supplier’s credit amounting to USD 41.927 million novated from Cnergyico Acisal Incorporated during
the year ended 30 June 2015 under the agreement as disclosed in note 20.1 to these consolidated nancial
statements. This carries mark-up at the rate of LIBOR+1% per annum, payable semi-annually. At the end
of the current year, the applicable interest rate is 2.7384% per annum.

iii) balance amount of loan novated from Byco Busient Incorporated, the ultimate Parent Company amounting
to USD 16.124 million (principal USD 15.713 million and markup USD 0.411 million) is repayable in four
unequal semi-annual installments. This carries markup at the rate of LIBOR + 1% per annum, payable
semi-annually. At the end of the current year, the applicable interest rate was 2.7384% per annum.

All of the aforesaid loans are repayable subject to the conditions and rights as disclosed in note 18.6 to
these consolidated nancial statements. 

2017 2016

---------Rupees in '000-------20. LONG-TERM DEPOSITS

Deposit from related party            - 3,646
Trade and other deposits 20.1 172,375 127,332

172,375 130,978

2017 2016

---------Rupees in '000-------

20.1 This includes interest-free deposits received from logistics vendors as security against goods to be transported.

21. DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Deferred taxation 21.1 3,325,425 4,771,519
Employees retirements bene ts 21.2 180,184 57,880
Arrangement fee 173,330 198,210

3,678,939 5,027,609
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Note

Note 2017 2016
--------Rupees in '000-------

2017 2016
--------Rupees in '000-------

21.1 DEFERRED TAXATION

Taxable temporary di erences arising in respect of: 
- accelerated tax depreciation 3,499,028 1,983,711
- nance lease -
- surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 17 6,346,972 6,766,958

9,846,000 8,750,669

Deductible temporary di erences arising in respect of:
- sta  gratuity fund (54,055) (17,942)
- provision for doubtful debts (1,086,570) (890,748)
- nance lease - (140)
- recoupable unabsorbed tax losses and depreciation (3,304,179) -
- recoupable minimum turnover tax (2,075,771) (3,070,320)

(6,520,575) (3,979,150)
3,325,425 4,771,519

21.2 Employees retirements bene ts - sta  gratuity

21.2.1 General description

The Group operates employee retirement bene ts for permanent employees who have completed the minimum
service period. In accordance with the requirements of IAS–19 “Employee Bene ts”, actuarial valuation was
carried out as at 30 June 2017, using the “Projected Unit Credit Method”. Provision has been made in the
consolidated nancial statements to cover obligation in accordance with the actuarial recommendations.
Details of signi cant assumptions used for the valuation and disclosures in respect of above-mentioned
scheme is as follows:

21.2.2 Reconciliation of amount payable to de ned bene t plan

Present value of de ned bene t obligation 21.2.3 208,096 80,017
Fair value of plan assets 21.2.4 (27,912) (22,137)

180,184 57,880

21.2.3 Movement in the present value of de ned bene t obligation:

Opening balance 80,017 89,010
Current service cost 14,920 17,949
Interest cost 6,200 7,161
Cost of transfers during the year 35,347
Transfer to the Parent Company 62,073 484
Bene ts paid during the year (13,448) (34,787)
Actuarial loss 22,987 200

208,096 80,017

21.2.4 Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets:

Opening balance 22,137 36,013
Expected return on plan assets 2,091 2,762
Contributions 15,649 18,000
Bene ts paid during the year (13,447) (34,787)
Actuarial gain / (loss) 1,482 149

27,912 22,137

21.2.5 Movement in net liability:

Opening balance 57,880 52,997
Charge for the year 21.2.6 54,375 22,348
Transfer to the Parent Company 62,073 484
Contributions (15,649) (18,000)
Actuarial loss chargeable in other  comprehensive income 21.2.7 21,505 51

180,184 57,880
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21.2.6 Charge for the year

Current service cost 14,920 17,949
Cost of transfers during the year 35,347             -
Interest cost–net 4,108 4,399

54,375 22,348

21.2.7 Actuarial remeasurements

Actuarial loss on de ned bene t obligations 22,987 200
Actuarial (gain) / loss on fair value of plan assets (1,482) (149)

21,505 51

21.2.8 Actuarial assumption

Valuation discount rate per annum 9.25% 9.00%
Salary increased rate per annum 7.25% 7.00%
Expected return on plan assets per annum 9.25% 9.00%
Normal retirement age of employees 60 years 60 years

21.2.9 Comparisons for past years:

As at June 30 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
-------------------------(Rupees `000)-----------------------

Present value of de ned bene t obligation 208,096 80,017 89,010 81,577 52,306
Fair value of plan assets (27,912) (22,137) (36,013) (15,978) -
De cit 180,184 57,880 52,997 65,599 52,306

Experience adjustment on plan liabilities 22,987 200 1,225 11,445 7,406
Experience adjustment on plan assets (1,482) (149) 1,385 (65) -

21,505 51 2,610 11,380 7,406

2017 2016
--------Rupees in '000-------

2017 2016
--------Rupees in '000-------

21.2.10 Composition of plan assets

Equity 18,637 -
Cash at bank 9,275 22,137

21.2.11 Balance sheet date sensitivity analysis (+100 bps) on present value of de ned bene t obligation

2017
Discount rate Salary increase

+100 bps -100 bps +100 bps -100 bps
-----------------(Rupees in '000) --------------------

Present value of de ned bene t obligation 185,351 234,979 236,335 183,907

21.2.12 As of 30 June 2017, a total of 646 (30 June 16:286) employees have been covered under the above scheme.

21.2.13 Charge for the next nancial year as per the actuarial valuation report amounts to Rs. 52.625 million.
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Note

Note

Note

2017 2016
--------(Rupees in '000)-------

2017 2016
--------(Rupees in '000)-------

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors for supplies and services 34,505,895 19,677,480
Accrued liabilities 913,064 472,976
Due to related party 76,560 13,658
Dividend payable 1,146 1,146
Sales tax, duties, levies and late payment surcharge 6,117,113 6,591,541
Workers’ pro t participation fund 22.1                  - 109,445
Workers’ welfare fund 41,755 15,569
Withholding tax deductions payable 176,693 3,684
Payable to sta  provident fund 46,019 13,934
Others                  - 7,196

41,878,245 26,906,629

22.1 The management is of the opinion, duly supported by the legal advisor that the Sindh Companies Pro ts
(Workers’ Participation) Act 2015 does not apply on the Company. Accordingly, the Company has reversed
the liability in respect of WPPF.

23. ADVANCE FROM CUSTOMERS 23.1 & 2 3.2 2,472,871 670,263

23.1 Includes Rs. 2,086.171 million (30 June 2016: Rs. Nil) received from a customer against supply of goods.

23.2 This includes Rs. 138 million (30 June 2016: Rs. 138 million) received in respect of demarcated plots of
land for setting up of Liqui ed Petroleum Gas storage and lling facilities (LPG village facility). The amount
has been received in advance from consumers under LPG village facility utilization agreement. The
agreements are e ective for 10 years from the date of signing or any period thereafter as mutually agreed.
The facility is expected to commence shortly after completion of certain legal formalities upon which the
advance will be classi ed as deferred revenue and amortized over the period of the agreed terms. These
advances are interest free.     

24. ACCRUED MARK-UP

Long-term nancing 183,522 98,951
Loans from related parties 301,869                -
Short-term borrowings 78,822                -
Advance from customers                - 95,692

564,213 194,643

25.2 Represents running nance facility amounting to Rs. 1,600 million obtained from a commercial bank. The
facility carries mark-up at the rate ofthree months KIBOR + 1.5% per annum. The facility is secured by
way of rst pari passu hypothecation charge of overall present and future current and xed assets of the
Holding Company.   

25. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Secured

Finance against trust receipt 25.1 1,771,784 6,593,696
Running nance 25.2 1,600,000 -

3,371,784 6,593,696
Other – unsecured               - 347,303

3,371,784 6,940,999

25.1 The facilities have been extended by commercial banks for import and procurement of crude oil and
petroleum products aggregating to Rs. 22,700 million (30 June 2016: Rs. 15,000 million) out of which Rs.
20,928.216 million (30 June 2016: Rs. 8,406.304 million) remains unutilized as at the balance sheet date.
The facility carries mark-up ranging from 1 month's KIBOR plus 1% to 1.5%. The facility is secured against
documents of title of goods, charge over the stocks of crude oil and petroleum products and receivables to
be generated from its sales, lien on the bank's collection account.    

2017 2016
---------Rupees in '000-------

2017 2016
--------Rupees in '000-------
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2017 2016
--------(Rupees in '000)-------

Note

Note

26. CURRENT PORTION OF LONG-TERM FINANCING 
AND MARK-UP

Long-term nancing and mark-up 18 7,932,304 5,596,765

27. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

27.1 Contingencies

27.1.1 Claims against the Holding Company not acknowledged as debts amounting to Rs. 3,991.089 million (30 June
2016: Rs. 3,834.285 million) comprise of late payment charges on account of delayed payments against crude
oil supplies from various Oil Production and Exploration Companies and based on the opinion of legal advisor,
the Holding Company is of the view that there are no speci c contractual arrangements with the above suppliers
and hence no provision in respect of the same has been made in these consolidated nancial statements.

2017 2016
---------Rupees in '000-------

2017 2016
---------Rupees in '000-------

27.2 Commitments

27.2.1 Outstanding letters of credit             - 10,722,572

27.2.2 Commitments for capital expenditure 221,474 11,478

27.2.3 Commitments in respect of Ijarah nancing:

Not later than one year            - 35,542

27.2.4 Commitments in respect of purchase of CRL’s shares 830,000            -

28. TURNOVER – net

Gross Sales
Local 110,198,050 106,954,070
Export 5,018,086 7,581,901

115,216,136 114,535,971
Rent of equipment and storage and handling income 152,218           -

Less: Sales discount, sales tax, excise duty 
and petroleum development levy (26,795,774) (36,179,273)

88,572,580 78,356,698

29. COST OF SALES

Opening stock 4,942,026 4,176,741
Transfer upon merger 82,434
Cost of goods manufactured 29.1 45,504,304 40,085,076
Finished products purchased during the year 40,146,428 35,915,358

90,675,192 80,177,175

Closing stock 9 (5,798,472) (4,942,026)
84,876,720 75,235,149

29.1 Cost of goods manufactured

Raw material consumed 29.1.1 39,625,255 35,561,446
Salaries, wages and other bene ts 29.1.2 729,254 390,677
Depreciation 5.1.4 3,520,678 2,378,726
Fuel, power and water 248,436 263,469
Operation cost 635,265 903,093
Insurance 211,275 106,915

134,841 177,363
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2017 2016
--------(Rupees in '000)-------

Note

2017 2016
--------(Rupees in '000)-------

Note

2017 2016
--------(Rupees in '000)-------

Note

Repairs and maintenance
Rent, rates and taxes 47,304 67,640
Industrial gases and chemicals 47,979 61,700
Sta  transportation and catering 94,702 62,676
Stores and spares consumed 147,522 67,591
Security expenses 46,582 24,120
Vehicle running 15,211 9,840
Others - 9,820

45,504,304 40,085,076

29.1.1 Raw material consumed

Opening stock 2,389,729 682,874
Transfer upon merger 253,274           -
Purchases during the year 43,766,629 37,268,301

46,409,632 37,951,175

Closing stock 9 (6,784,377) (2,389,729)
Raw material consumed 39,625,255 35,561,446

29.1.2 This includes a sum of Rs. 29.407 million (30 June 2015: Rs.12.938 million) in respect of sta  retirement bene ts.

30. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and other bene ts 30.1 456,640 382,062
Rent, rates and taxes 88,729 67,318
Depreciation 5.1.4 83,877 54,652
Repairs and maintenance 35,302 36,309
Legal and professional 29,635 26,673
Travelling and conveyance 32,074 27,359
Vehicle running 19,678 24,098
Utilities 10,183 7,630
Fee and subscriptions 16,525 10,140
Insurance 8,728 7,878
Auditors’ remuneration 30.2 6,110 5,281
Printing and stationary 9,029 7,687
SAP maintenance costs 10,520 17,986
Others 10,917 18,539

817,947 693,612

30.1 This includes a sum of Rs. 18.414 million (30 June 2016: Rs. 6.671 million) in respect of sta  retirement bene ts. 

30.2 Auditors’ remuneration

Statutory audit 3,900 1,800
Half yearly review 600 500
Consolidation of nancial statements 600                 400 
Special audit and other certi cations 500 2,006
Out of pocket expenses 510 575

6,110 5,281

31. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and other bene ts 31 .1 162,561 169,334
Transportation and product handing charges 276,488 304,305
Advertisement 6,888 47,510
Rent, rates and taxes 89,380 86,461
Depreciation 5.1.4 37,192 37,643
Export development surcharge - 16,568
Wharfage and other export expenses 28,857 30,574
Insurance 1,335 2,036

602,701 694,431
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31.1 This includes a sum of Rs. 6.555 million (30 June 2016: Rs. 2.739 million) in respect of sta  retirement bene ts.

Note 2017 2016
--------Rupees in '000-------

32. OTHER EXPENSES

Late payment surcharge and penalties 333,498 245,327
Provision for doubtful debts 10.2 748,522 680,548
Workers’ pro t participation fund              - 38,923
Workers’ welfare fund 22 26,186 15,569

1,108,206 980,367

33. OTHER INCOME

Income from nancial assets
Interest on balances due from customers 448,522 465,251
Interest income on saving accounts 33,821 17,271
Interest on loan to CRL 54,791 50,618

537,134 533,140

Deferred arrangement fee payable written back               - 223,019

Income from non - nancial assets
Reversal of excess sales tax surcharge provision 401,428 708,883
Insurance claim 560,572 -
Reversal of WPPF 109,445 -
Land lease rent -            52,937 
Storage and handling income             - 28,158
Gain on disposal of operating xed assets - 3,044
Dealership income 7,500 8,100

1,078,945 801,122

1,616,079 1,557,281
34. FINANCE COSTS

Mark-up on:
- Long-term nancing 1,511,552 1,560,519
- Loan from a commercial bank              - 173,712
- Loan from syndicate banks              - 25,877
- Short-term borrowings 505,184 696,248
- Loans from related parties 135,349 -
- Musharaka facility            - 24,741
- Advance from customers            - 20,159
- Workers’ pro t participation fund            - 6,341

2,152,085 2,507,597

Unwinding of arrangement fee            - 20,971
Exchange loss – net 34.1 178,657 229,070
Bank and other charges 109,230 67,405

2,439,972 2,825,043

Recovery of mark-up from Parent Company relating to 
short-term borrowings             - (25,451)

Reimbursement of arrangement fee from CRL             - (20,971)
- (46,422)

2,439,972 2,778,621

34.1 Represents exchange loss - net arising on revaluation of foreign currency nancial assets and liabilities
and on transactions in foreign currencies. 
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2017 2016
--------Rupees in '000-------

2017 2016
--------Rupees in '000-------

--------Rupees in '000-------

35. TAXATION

Current (471,398) (448,164)
Prior year 43,141 81,635
Deferred 1,487,848 1,221,055

1,059,591 854,526

35.1 The income tax returns of the Holding Company and a Subsidiary Company (BIPL) have been led up to and
including tax year 2016. These, except for those mentioned below, are deemed to have been assessed under
section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 

35.2 The Holding Company was selected for an audit under Section 177 and 214C of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 for the tax year 2013. Audit proceedings for all mentioned tax year was completed and a demand of
Rs. 87.105 million has been raised in an amended order passed under Section 122(1)(5) of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. Being aggrieved by the amended order, the Holding Company led an appeal before
Commissioner Inland Revenue, Appeals, Karachi which is pending for adjudication. However, as a matter of
prudence, the said amount has already been provided for in these consolidated nancial statements.

35.3 Under section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance), the Holding Company is obligated
to pay tax at the rate of 7.5 percent on its accounting pro t before tax if it derives pro t for a tax year but
does not distribute at least 40 percent of its after tax pro ts within six months of the end of the tax year,
through cash or bonus shares. The Holding Company led a Constitutional Petition (CP) before the Court
on 24 November 2017 challenging the tax, and the Court accepted the CP and granted a stay against the
above section.     

In case the Court’s decision is not in favor of the Holding Company, the Holding Company will either be
required to declare the dividend to the extent of 40% of after tax pro ts or it will be liable to pay additional
tax at the rate of 7.5% of the accounting pro t before tax of the Holding Company for the nancial year
ended 30 June 2017. As at the balance sheet date, no liability has been recorded by the Holding Company
in this respect.  

35.4 Relationship between accounting loss and tax expense for the year

The Holding Company is subject to Minimum Tax and Final Tax Regime under section 113 and section
169 respectively of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, there fore, relationship between income tax expense
and accounting pro t has not been presented for the current year.   

No taxation has been provided by a Subsidiary Company (BIPL) in line with the provisions of the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001. 

36. EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE – basic and diluted

Pro t after taxation 1,402,704 386,325

----------(Number)----------

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 5,329,884,706 977,858,737

Earnings per share – basic and diluted 0.26 0.40

37. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Group has related party transactions with its parent company, associated companies, directors, key
management personnel, sta  provident fund and sta  gratuity fund. Details of transactions and balances
with related parties are as follows: 
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2017 2016
-------Rupees in '000-------

37.1 Transactions with related parties

Parent Company
Shares issued 48,945,202                   -
Mark-up charged 135,349                   -
Land lease rentals           - 52,634
Purchases           - 41,998,051
Loan received           - 400,000
Sales           - 13,469,307
Mark-up charged -net           - 368,345
Interest received           - 27,994
Allocation of gratuity expense           - 484
Allocation of group expenses           - 378,194

Associated Companies
Sales 1,963,515 1,063,832
Consultancy services from associated company - 13,076
Purchase of operating xed assets and services 35,923 -
Interest income - 28,348
Port services rendered - 44,655
Receipt of short-term loan - 20,000
Sta  Provident Fund
Contribution made to sta  provident fund 109,947 42,367

37.2 Balances with related parties 

Parent Company
Receivable against land lease rent - 329,134
Interest accrued - 18,924
Security deposit payable - 3,646
Receivable against services - 167,197
Payable against purchases and expenses - 433,389
Receivable against purchase of goods and services - 1,005,506
Other receivables 25,138 -
Contribution against future issue of shares 761,129 -
Accrued mark-up 301,869 -
Loan payable 6,110,417 -
Payable against expenses - 12,014

Associated Companies
Long-term deposit receivable 95 95
Trade debts 224,068 9,703
Advance against purchases           - 9,407
Interest accrued 108,192 259,302
Payable against purchases 8,147 11,709

Others

Payable to Key Management Person 68,508                -
Payable to sta  provident fund 46,019 13,934

38. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVES, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged in these consolidated nancial statements for remuneration, including 
bene ts and perquisites, to the Chief Executives, Directors and Executives of the Group are as follows:
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT, OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group nances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a
view to maintain an appropriate mix between various sources of nances to minimize the risk. The Group's
principal nancial instruments comprise loans from nancial institutions, short-term borrowings and trade
and other payables. Main purpose of these nancial instruments is to raise funds for the import of crude oil
for re ning business and for its operations. The Group has various nancial assets such as cash (including
balances with banks), trade debtors, deposits, loans and advances, other receivables, etc. which are directly
related to Group’s operations.

The Group’s overall risk management policy focuses on minimizing potential adverse e ects on the Group’s
nancial performance. The overall risk management of the Group is carried out by the Group’s senior

management team under policies approved by the Board of Directors. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes and assumptions during the year ended 30 June 2017.

The policies for managing each of these risk are summarized below:

39.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash ows of a nancial instrument will uctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other
price risk.

39.1.1 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will uctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises from long-term nancing and short-
term borrowing facilities for nancing its re ning business operations, loan to Coastal Re nery Limited (CRL)
and meeting working capital requirements at variable rates as well as on delayed payments from PSO and
K-Electric Limited on which the Group earns interest. The Group manages these mismatches through risk
management policies where signi cant changes in gap position can be adjusted.

At the reporting date, the interest rate pro le of Group's interest-bearing nancial instruments was:

Variable Rate Instruments
2017 2016

-------(Rupees in '000) ------
Financial assets
Trade debts 6,445,239 6,132,327
Long term loan to CRL 688,780 1,518,780

7,134,019 7,651,107

 
Chief  

Executives  

 

Directors  

 

Executives   

 

Total

 

2017    2016   2017   2016   2017   2016   2017    2016  
 --------------------------(Rupeesin ‘000)------------------------------    

Fees -  -  900  1,000  -  -  900  1,000 
Managerial remuneration 8,100  18,403        -  6,674   360,721   156,580   368,821   181,657  
Housing and utilities       -  5,285        -  2,002  116,575   50,303   116,575   57,590  
Leave fare assistance       -  1,467        -  556   30,048  13,043   30,048  15,066  
Sta  retirement bene ts       -  2,935        -  1,112   57,792   25,887   57,792   29,934  

8,100  28,090  900  11,344  565,136   245,813   57 4,136  285,247  

Number of persons 1  3  1   2  345   151   347  15 6 

38.1 The number of persons does not include those who left during the year but remuneration paid to them is
included in the above amounts.  

38.2 The Chief Executives and few Executives have been provided company maintained cars.

38.3 As at 30 June 2017, the Group's Board of Directors consists of  7 Directors (of which 6 are Non-Executive
Directors). Except for the Chief Executives and a Director, no remuneration and other bene ts have been
paid to any Director.   
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Note 2017 2016

-------(Rupees in '000) ------
Financial liabilities
Long-term nancing and mark-up 18 32,650,780 17,767,028
Loan from related parties 6,110,417             -
Short-term borrowings 25 3,371,784 6,593,696
Current portion of liabilities against asset 

subject to nance lease - 4,362
42,132,981 24,365,086

A change of 1% in interest rates at the year-end would have increased or decreased the loss before tax
by Rs. 277.305 million (June 2016: Rs. 169.007 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for June 2016.  

39.1.2 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will uctuate due
to changes in foreign exchange rates and arises where transactions are done in foreign currency. 

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on transactions that are entered in a currency other than Pak
Rupees. As the Group imports plant and equipment and crude oil, it is exposed to currency risk by virtue of
borrowings (in foreign currency). Further foreign currency risk also arises on payment to the supplier of
tugs for operations of SPM. The currency in which these transactions are undertaken is US Dollar. Relevant
details are as follows:

2017 2016
(Rupees in ‘000) (USD ‘000) (Rupees in ‘000) (USD ‘000)

Long term nancing and mark-up 1,628,768 15,512 - -

Loans from related parties 6,110,417 58,194 - -

Accrued mark-up on loan 
from related parties 301,869 2,875 - -

8,041,054 76,581 - -

The average rates applied during the year is Rs. 104.85 / USD (30 June 2016: Rs. 103.25 / USD) and the
spot rate as at 30 June 2017 is Rs. 105 / USD (30 June 2016: 104.70 / USD). 

A change of 1% in exchange rates at the year-end would have increased or decreased the loss by Rs. 107.722
million (30 June 2016: Rs. Nil). This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as for June 2016.

39.1.3 Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash ows of the nancial instruments will uctuate
because of changes in market prices. As at the balance sheet date, the Group is not exposed to any other
price risk.

39.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of nancial loss to the Group if a customer or a counter party to a nancial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligation, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers
and balances held with banks. The Group manages credit risk in the following manner:

Management of credit risk

The Group’s policy is to enter into nancial contracts in accordance with the guidelines set by the Board
of Directors and other internal guidelines.

Credit risk is managed and controlled by the management of the Group in the following manner:
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- Credit rating and credit worthiness of the counterparty is taken into account along with the nancial
    background so as to minimize the risk of default.

- The risk of counterparty exposure due to failed agreements causing a loss to the Group is mitigated by a
    periodic review of their credit ratings, nancial statements, credit worthiness and market information on a
    regular basis. 

- Cash is held with reputable banks only.

As of the balance sheet date, the Group is exposed to credit risk on the following assets:

Note 2017 2016
-------Rupees in '000-------

2017 2016
-------Rupees in '000-------

Long-term loans and advances 7 1,417,936 1,753,780
Long-term deposits 8 16,956 31,332
Trade debts 10 4,858,318 8,278,080
Loans and advances 11 226,064 555,535
Trade deposits 12 - 16,747
Other receivables 13 1,467,442 1,276,715
Accrued interest 237,951 353,193
Cash and bank balances 14 249,339 240,330

8,474,006 12,505,712

Credit quality of nancial assets

The credit quality of nancial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference
to external credit ratings agencies or the historical information about counter party default rates as shown
below: 

Trade debts

The aging of unimpaired debtors at the balance sheet date is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired 1,937,052 4,026,464
Past due 1-30 days 18,735 20,196
Past due 31-180 days 30,371 57,061
Past due 180-365 days  27,531 1,010,007
Above 365 days 2,844,629 3,164,352

4,858,318 8,278,080

2017 2016
-------Rupees in '000-------

Bank balances

A-1+ 199,465 141,793
A1 47,898 74,346
A2 1,976 24,191

249,339 240,330

Financial assets other than trade debts and bank balances are not exposed to any material credit risk.

39.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk re ects the Group’s inability in raising fund to meet commitments. Management closely monitors
the Group’s liquidity and cash ow position. This includes maintenance of balance sheet liquidity ratios, debtors
and creditors concentration both in terms of the overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on any
individual customer.

The table below summarizes the maturity pro le of the Group's nancial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments.
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On 
demand

Less than     
3 months

3 to 12    
months

1 to 5    
years

Total

-----------------------(Rupees in '000)-------------------------

-----------------------(Rupees in '000)-------------------------

2017
Long-term loans and mark-up - 1,612,645 6,319,659 24,718,476 32,650,780
Loans from related parties - -           - 6,110,417 6,110,417
Long-term deposits - - - 172,375 172,375
Trade and other payables 6,11 8,359 35,759,886           - - 41,878,245
Advance from customer - 2,472,871           - - 2,472,871
Short-term borrowings - 3,371,784           - - 3,371,784
Accrued mark-up 564,213 -           - - 564,213

6,682,572 43,217,186 6,319,659 31,001,268 87,220,685

On 
demand

Less than    
3 months

3 to 12    
months

1 to 5    
years

Total

2016
Long-term loans and mark-up - 1,632,326 3,964,439 12,170,263 17,767,028
Liabilities against assets subject to 

nance lease -
4,362 - - 4,362

Long-term deposits - - - 130,978 130,978
Trade and other payables 633,185 26,943,707 - - 27,576,892
Short-term borrowings 347,303 6,593,696 - - 6,940,999
Accrued mark-up 95,692 98,951 - - 194,643

1,076,180 35,273,042 3,964,439 12,301,241 52,614,902

39.4 Capital risk management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital
ratios in order to support its business, sustain the development of the business and maximize the
shareholders’ value. The Group closely monitors the return on capital. The Group manages its capital
structure and makes adjustment to it in light of changes in economic conditions and nances its activities
through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view to maintain an approximate
mix between various sources of nance to minimize the risk. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes during the year ended 30 June 2017.

The Group is not exposed to externally imposed capital requirement.

40. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability can be settled, between
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. The carrying values of all nancial assets
and liabilities re ected in the nancial statements approximate their fair values.

The following table shows nancial instruments recognised at fair value, analysed between those whose
fair value is based on: 

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2: Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and 

Level 3: Those whose inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market date
(unobservable inputs).

As of the balance sheet date, the Group does not have any nancial instruments measured at fair value.

41. OPERATING SEGMENTS

For management purposes, the Group has determined following reportable operating segments on the basis
of business activities i.e. oil re ning and petroleum marketing. Oil re ning business is engaged in crude oil
re ning and selling of re ned petroleum products to oil marketing companies. Petroleum marketing business
is engaged in trading of petroleum products, procuring products from oil re ning business as well as from
other sources. The quantitative data for segments is given below:
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Oil Re ning Business Petroleum Marketing 
Business

Total

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
-------------------------------------(Rupees in '000)-------------------------------------

Turnover
Net Sales to external customers 53,173,101 48,065,996 35,399,480 30,290,702 88,572,581 78,356,698
Inter-segment sales 33,468,337 28,155,149 80,479             - 33,548,816 (28,155,149)
Eliminations (33,468,337) (28,155,149) (80,479)       - (33,548,816) ((28,155,149)
Total turnover 53,173,101 48,065,996 35,399,480 30,290,702 88,572,581 78,356,698

Result
Segment pro t 2,549,832 1,486,358 804,324 1,048,270 3,354,156 2,534,628
Unallocated expenses:
Finance cost (2,439,972) (2,778,621)
Interest income 537,134 756,159
Other expenses (1,082,019) (980,367)
Taxation 812,920 854,526
Pro t for the year 1,402,705 386,325

Segmental Assets 109,031,873 54,408,942 1,362,030 1,434,661 110,393,903 55,843,603
Unallocated Assets

109,031,873 54,408,942 1,362,030 1,434,661 110,393,903 55,843,603

Segmental Liabilities 90,086,899 56,847,889 1,161,907 1,195,786 91,248,806 58,043,675
Unallocated Liabilities -

90,086,899 56,847,889 1,161,907 1,195,786 91,248,806 58,043,675

Capital expenditure 3,584,259 150,861 8,576 2,249 3,592,835 153,110

Other Information
Depreciation and amortization 3,604,555 2,433,378 37,192 37,643 3,641,747 2,471,021

42. PROVIDENT FUND DISCLOSURE

The Holding Company operates an approved funded contributory provident fund for both its management
and non-management employees. Details of net assets and investments of the fund is as follows:

2017 2016
------Rupees in '000-----

Size of the fund - net assets 255,733 143,979
Cost of investments made 214,271 111,908
Fair value of investments 213,164 128,885
Percentage of investments 83.79% 89.51%

Break-up of fair value of investments in terms of amount and as percentage of the size of the fund is as follows: 

2017 2016
(Rupeesin '000) % (Rupeesin '000) %

Bank deposits 110,357 43.15% 39,846 27.67%
Debt securities 4,398 1.72% 24,881 17.28%
Government securities 19,709 7.71%                - -
Unit trust schemes 79,807 31.21% 64,158 44.56%

214,271 83.79% 128,885 89.51%

The management, based on the unaudited nancial statements of the fund, is of the view that the
investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 227 of
the repealed Ordinance, 1984 and the rules formulated for this purpose. 

43. CAPACITY AND ANNUAL PRODUCTION

Against the designed annual re ning capacity (based on 330 days) of 51.15 million barrels (2016: 11.55
million barrels), the actual throughput during the year was 8.402 million barrels (2016: 8.362 million barrels).
The Group operated the plant considering the level which gives optimal yield of products. 

44. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees as at 30 June 2017 were 700 (30 June 2016:305) and average number
of employees were 496 (30 June 2016:350). 
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45. RECLASSIFICATION

Following corresponding gures have been reclassi ed for better presentation:

From To (Rs. in '000)

Trade and other payables Advance from customers 670,263
Selling and distribution expenses Turnover – net 1,731,707

46. GENERAL

46.1 Figures have been rounded o  to the nearest thousand of Rupees, unless otherwise stated.

46.2 Comparative gures of these consolidated nancial statements comprise the gures of BPPL, BTPL and
BIPL only as more fully explained in note 1.1 to these consolidated nancial statements. 

47. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These consolidated nancial statements were authorised for issue on December 20, 2017 by the
Board of Directors of the Group. 

Syed Arshad Raza
Director

Amir Abbassciy
Chief Executive 

Naeem Asghar Malik
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Shareholders Category
No. of 

Shareholders No. of Shares %

Directors, Chief Executive O cer and their 
spouse and minor children. 9 21,800

0.000409014

Associated Companies, Undertakings and 
Related Parties 1 4,894,520,196

91.83163363

NIT and ICP 0 0 0

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non-
Banking Financial Institutions 8 248,511,939

4.662613785

Insurance Companies 3 275,000 0.005159586

Modarabas and Mutual Funds 6 1,075,000 0.020169292

General Public 15,559 171,978,899 3.226690791

Others 124 13,501,872 0.253323904

TOTAL 15,710 5,329,884,706 100

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Shareholders' Category Number of 
Shareholders Number of Shares held 

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (name wise details)

Byco Industries Incorporated 1 4,894,520,196

Modarabas and Mutual Funds  (name wise detail)

First Fidelity Leasing Modaraba 1 10,000

Trust Modaraba 1 40,000

CDC - Trustee First Capital Mutual Fund 1 200,000 
CDC - Trustee First Dawood Mutual Fund 1 25,000 
Trustee Pak Qatar Family Takaful Limited Aggressive Fund 1 400,000 
Trustee Pak Qatar Family Takaful Limited Balance Fund (BF) 1 400,000 

Directors and their spouse and minor children. (name wise details)
Mr. Amir Abbassciy 1 2,500
Mr. Omar Khan Lodhi 1 500
Chaudhary Khaqan Saadullah Khan 1 500
Mr. Akhtar Hussain Malik 1 500
Mr. Muhammad Mahmood Hussain 1 500
Syed Nayyer Hussain 1 500

Syed Arshad Raza 1 10,600
Mrs. Uzma Abbassciy (Wife of Mr. Amir Abbassciy ) 1 5,600
Mrs. Fazilay Ghulam Ali Raza (Wife of Syed Arshad Raza) 1 600

Executives 5 85,500

Public Sector Companies and Corporations

Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non-Banking
Finance companies, insurance companies, takaful, modarabas
and pension funds 8 248,511,939

Shareholders holding 5% or more voting rights in the listed company
(name wise details)
Byco Industries Incorporated 1 4,894,520,196

 100
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1 
101 
501 

1,001 
5,001 

10,001 
15,001 
20,001 
25,001 
30,001 
35,001 
40,001 
45,001 
50,001 
55,001 
60,001 
65,001 
70,001 
75,001 
80,001 
85,001 
90,001 
95,001 

100,001 
105,001 
110,001 
115,001 
120,001 
125,001 
130,001 
135,001 
140,001 
145,001 
150,001 
160,001 
165,001 
170,001 
175,001 
185,001 
190,001 
195,001 
200,001 
205,001 
210,001 
215,001 
220,001 
225,001 
230,001 
240,000 
250,000 
260,001 

100 
500 

1,000 
5,000 

10,000 
15,000
20,000 
25,000 
30,000 
35,000 
40,000 
45,000 
50,000 
55,000 
60,000 
65,000 
70,000 
75,000 
80,000 
85,000

 

90,000

 

95,000 
100,000 
105,000 
110,000 
115,000 
120,000 
125,000 
130,000 
135,000 
140,000 
145,000 

155,000
 150,000

 
165,000 
170,000 
175,000 
180,000 
190,000 
195,000 
200,000 
205,000 
210,000 
215,000

 

220,000

 

225,000

 

230,000

 

235,000

 

245,000

 

255,000
265,000

From To

No. of Shares

No. of Shareholders No. of Shares Held

 
 
 

 

 

875

 
2,376
2,732
5,491
1,784

616
443
284
186
122

77
55

144
46
40
16
25
34
21
19
15
16
68
14
11

7
14

8
4
6
2
4

11
3
2
3
6
1
2
3

19
3
 2 

3
2
1
3 
1
2 
5 
1 

31,930
1,061,496
2,630,956

15,912,190
14,539,706

 

8,045,385
8,206,824
6,743,328
5,337,090
4,057,293
2,972,743
2,367,012
7,131,832
2,442,747
2,334,000
1,021,840
1,721,260
2,492,719
1,655,300
1,577,270
1,327,030
1,501,100
6,779,696
1,436,000
1,200,400

794,000
1,667,400

992,290
517,000

806,000
276,000
568,287

1,647,000
456,500
327,000
504,030

1,044,800
178,000
379,500
574,000

3,795,930
613,000
418,000
642,000

 
439,000

 
224,000

 
685,886

 
232,000

 
481,500

 
1,256,500

260,500
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265,001
 285,000
 290,001
 300,000
 325,001
 330,001
 345,001 

380,001
 400,000
 415,000
 430,000
 440,000
 445,001
 460,000
 495,001
 500,001
 520,001
 550,000
 590,001
 615,001
 625,001
 635,001
 650,000
 660,000
 685,000
 710,001
 720,001
 745,001
 800,000
 820,001
 840,000
 910,001
 980,001
 985,001
 1,000,000
 1,010,000
 1,060,000
 1,090,001
 1,200,000
 1,250,000
 1,515,001

1,700,000
1,940,001
2,790,001
4,650,000
6,980,001

248,015,001
4,894,520,196

270,000
 290,000
 295,000
 305,000
 330,000
 335,000
 350,000 

385,000
 405,000
 420,000
 435,000
 445,000
 450,000
 465,000
 500,000
 505,000
 525,000
 555,000
 595,000
 620,000
 630,000
 640,000
 655,000
 665,000
 690,000
 715,000
 725,000
 750,000
 805,000
 825,000
 845,000
 915,000
 985,000
 990,000
 1,005,000

1,015,000
1,065,000
1,095,000
1,205,000
1,255,000
1,520,000
1,705,000
1,945,000
2,795,000
4,655,000
6,985,000

248,020,000
4,894,520,196

From To

No. of Shares

No. of Shareholders No. of Shares Held

 
 
 

 

2 
2 
2 
6

 

2

 

2
 1 

1 
6 
1 
1 
1 
2 
1 
8 
2 
1 
1 
3 
1 
1 
2 
2 
1 
1 
1 
1 
3 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
4 
1 
1 
1 
2 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 

535,000 
575,000 
586,500

 

1,800,000

 

654,500

 

669,500
 345,200 

382,000 
2,400,000 

415,000 
430,000 
440,000 
899,000 
460,000 

3,995,500 
1,007,500 

524,500 
550,000 

1,779,000 
618,528 
625,500 

1,276,000 
1,303,000 

660,000 
685,000 
712,000 
724,554 

2,247,000 
800,000 
822,000 
840,000 
911,500 

982,000 
986,000 

4,000,000 
1,010,000 
1,060,000 
1,092,500 

2,400,000 
1,250,000 
1,516,500

1,700,000
1,944,086
2,794,000
4,650,000
6,983,000

248,015,872
4,894,520,196

15,710                                    5,329,884,706                     
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Notice is hereby given that the 23rd Annual General Meeting of Byco Petroleum Pakistan
Limited will be held on Thursday, 25th January 2018 at 9:00 am at the Moosa D. Desai
Auditorium, ICAP, Clifton, Karachi to transact the following businesses: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To con rm the minutes of the 22nd Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
26th October 2016. 

2. To receive, consider and adopt the audited unconsolidated and consolidated nancial
statements for the nancial year ended 30th June 2017, together with the Directors’ and
Auditors’ reports thereon.  

3. To re-appoint the auditors for the nancial year 2017-18 and to x their remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

1. Pursuant to the Companies (E-Voting) Regulations, 2016 (the “Regulations”) members
are entitled to vote electronically and for the purpose appoint a member as proxy. 

Approval of the members is accordingly sought for amendment in the Company’s
Articles of Association in order to conform them, with the requirements of the
Regulations, and to pass, if deemed appropriate, with or without modi cation, the
following resolutions, as Special Resolutions:   

“RESOLVEDTHAT as and by way of Special Resolution that:

(i) Article 76 of the Articles of Association be deleted and replaced by the following
new Article 76: 

‘76. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the 
appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in writing, or, if the appointor is
a corporation either under the common seal, or under the hand of an o cer 
or attorney so authorised. No person shall act as a proxy unless he is a 
member of the Company, provided, however, that for E-Voting a non-
member may also be appointed and act as proxy.’

(ii) Article 78 of the Articles of Association be amended by deleting the rst sentence
thereof and replacing it with the following new sentence:

‘78. An instrument appointing a proxy may be in the following form, or in the
form speci ed for E-voting in Schedule II to the Companies (E-Voting)
Regulations, 2016, or in any other form approved by the Directors:’

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive O cer and the Company
Secretary be and hereby are jointly and singularly authorised to do all such acts
and take all such steps as may be necessary or desirable to give e ect to the foregoing
resolutions.”

2. The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has allowed companies
to circulate the annual audited accounts to members via CD or DVD or USB at their
registered addresses, subject to the conditions speci ed there for. Accordingly, consent
of the members is sought for transmission of the annual audited accounts of the
Company via CD or DVD or USB and to pass, if deemed appropriate, with or without
modi cation, the following special resolutions:     

“RESOLVED THAT the Company may transmit the annual audited accounts to the
members via, email or other electronic and digital means or CD or DVD or USB instead
of hard copies, as allowed by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.  
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FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive O cer and the Company Secretary
be and hereby are jointly and singularly authorised to do all such acts and take all such
steps as may be necessary or desirable to give e ect to the foregoing resolutions.”   

By Order of the Board

Majid Muqtadir 3rd January 2018
KarachiCompany Secretary

A statement under Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2017 pertaining to the
Special Business is annexed 

NOTES:

Closure of Share Transfer Books

The register of members and the share transfer books of the Company will remain closed
from Thursday, 18th January 2018 until Thursday, 25th January 2018 (both days inclusive). 

Participation in the Meeting

Only persons whose names appear in the register of members of the Company as on
Wednesday, 17th January 2018, are entitled to attend, participate in, and vote at the Meeting. 

A member entitled to attend and vote may appoint another member as proxy to attend and
vote on his / her behalf. Proxies must be received at the registered o ce of the Company not
less than 48 hours before the time for holding the Meeting. A form of proxy is included in the
Company’s Annual Report. 

Guidelines for CDC Account Holders

CDC account holders should comply with the following guidelines of the SECP:

For Attendance

a) Individuals should be account holder(s) or sub-account holder (s) and their registration
details should be uploaded according to CDC regulations and must establish their
identity at the time of the Meeting by presenting their original Computerized National
Identity Card (CNIC) or passport.   

b) Unless provided earlier, corporate entities must at the time of the Meeting produce a
certi ed copy of a resolution of their Board of Directors or a Power of Attorney,
bearing the specimen signature of the attorney.  

For Appointing Proxies

a) Individuals should be account holder(s) or sub-account holder (s) whose registration
details should be uploaded according to CDC regulations and their proxy forms must
be submitted at the registered o ce of the Company not less than 48 hours before the
time for holding the Meeting.   

b) The proxy form must be attested by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC
numbers must be speci ed therein. 

c) Attested copies of the CNIC or passport of the bene cial owner and the proxy must
be provided along with the form of proxy. 

d) Proxies must at the time of the Meeting produce their original CNIC or passport.
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e) Unless provided earlier, corporate entities must at the time of the Meeting produce a
certi ed copy of a resolution of their Board of Directors or a Power of Attorney,
bearing the specimen signature of the attorney.  

Dividend Bank Mandate

Members may authorize the Company to credit his / her future cash dividends directly into 
his / her bank account. Members who would like future cash dividends to be credited directly 
into their bank accounts should mark the ‘YES’ box below and provide the required 
information under signature to the Shares Registrar.

Yes No

Folio Number:
Name of Shareholder:
Title of the Bank Account:
Bank Account Number (IBAN):
Name of Bank:
Name of Bank Branch and Address:
Cellular Number of shareholder:
Landline Number of shareholder:
CNIC / NTN Number (Attach copy):

_______________________________
Signature of Member

(Signature must match specimen signature registered with the Company)
Members holding shares in CDC accounts should update their bank mandates, if any, with the
respective participants.

Intimation of Change of Address
Members holding share certi cates should notify any change in their registered address and,
if applicable, submit their non-deduction of zakat declaration form to the Shares Registrar. 
Members holding shares in CDC / participant accounts should update their addresses and, if
applicable, submit their non-deduction of zakat declaration form to the CDC or the respective
participants / stockbrokers.

Submission of CNIC Copies

A list of members who have not submitted copies of their CNICs be viewed on the 
Company’s website www.byco.com.pk.

Electronic Transmission of Financial Statements and Notice of AGM

Members who have provided email addresses in the required consent form will receive the
Audited Financial Statements along with the notice of the Annual General Meeting by email.
Members who would like to receive the Annual Report by email should provide their email
addresses to the Company Secretary. A consent form for receiving the Annual Report by
email may be downloaded from the Company’s website. 
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If the Company receives consent from members holding in aggregate 10% or more
shareholding residing at a geographical location, to participate in the meeting through video
conference at least 10 days prior to date of meeting, the Company will arrange video
conference facility in the city subject to availability of such facility in that city.   

The Company will intimate members regarding venue of video conference facility at least 5
days before the date of the Annual General Meeting along with complete information
necessary to enable them to access the facility.  

Statement under Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2017 pertaining to the
Special Businesses 

This statement sets forth the material facts concerning the special business listed
hereinabove, to be transacted at the 23rd Annual General Meeting of the Company to
be held on 25th January 2018.  

Agenda Item 1:

To give the e ect of the Companies (E-Voting) Regulations, 2016, the shareholders’
approval is being sought to amend the articles of association of the Company to enable
e-voting which will give the members option to be part of the decision making in the general
meeting of the Company through electronic means.   

Agenda Item 2: 

In order to implement SECP directives with respect to transmission / circulation of
annual audited accounts through CD / DVD / USB instead of hard copies, resolution is
part of the notice for approval of shareholders to adopt the newly introduced mode of
transmission.   

Video Conference Facility 

Members can also avail video conference facility at Lahore and Islamabad. In this regard,
please ll the requisite form (available on Company’s website www.byco.com.pk) and
submit to registered address of the Company 10 days before holding of the Annual General
Meeting.   
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Admission Slip

The 23rd Annual General Meeting of Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited will be held on Thursday,
25th January 2018 at 9:00 am at Moosa D. Desai Auditorium, ICAP, Clifton, Karachi.

Kindly bring this Admission Slip duly signed by you for attending the Meeting.

Majid Muqtadir
Company Secretary

Name

Folio / CDC Account No. Signature

NOTE

(i) Signatures of the members should tally with the specimen signatures in the Company’s
record. 

(ii) Completed Admission Slips must be submitted prior to entering the hall where the
Meeting is being held. 

CDC Account Holder(s) / Proxies / Corporate Entities

(a) Account holder(s) / Sub-account holder (s) / Proxies must present their original CNICs or
passports prior to entering the hall where the Meeting is being held. 

(b) Corporate entities should at the time of the Meeting, unless provided earlier, produce a 
certi ed copy of a resolution of the Board of Directors, or a Power of Attorney bearing 
the specimen signature of the attorney. 

This Admission Slip is not transferable. 
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Form of Proxy The Company Secretary
Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited
9th Floor, The Harbour Front, Dolmen City
HC-3, Block-4, Marine Drive, Clifton
Karachi-75600

23rd Annual General Meeting

I / We

of 

being member(s) of Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited and holder(s) of

ordinary shares, hereby appoint 

of or failing him / her 

of , who is / are also member(s) of Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited,

as my / our proxy in my / our absence to attend and vote on my / our behalf at the 23rd Annual General Meeting of 

the Company to be held on Thursday, 25th January 2018 and in case of adjournment, at any reconvened Meeting.

Signed/Seal and Delivered by

in the presence of:

1. Name: 2. Name:

CNIC No.: CNIC No.: 

Address: Address: 

Folio No. / CDC Account No. This signature should tally with the
specimen signature in the
Company’s record  

Important

1. The duly completed and signed proxy form must be received at the registered o ce of the Company at 9th Floor, The Harbour
Front, Dolmen City, HC-3, Block-4, Marine Drive, Clifton, Karachi-75600, not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the
Meeting.  

2. Only members of the Company may be appointed proxies except corporate members who may appoint non-members as their proxy.

3. If more than one proxy is appointed by an instrument or more than one instrument of proxy is deposited by any member, all such
instruments shall be rendered invalid. 

For CDC account holder(s) / corporate entities
In addition to the above, the following requirements must be met:

i) the execution of the proxy form should be attested by two witnesses, whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall appear in
the form; 

ii) attested copies of the CNIC or passport of the bene cial owner and proxy should be submitted along with the proxy form;

iii) the proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or passport at the time of the Meeting; and

iv) Corporate entities should at the time of the Meeting, unless provided earlier, produce a certi ed copy of a resolution of the Board of
Directors, or a Power of Attorney bearing the specimen signature of the attorney. 



 

Company Secretary
Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited
9th Floor, The Harbour Front, Dolmen City
HC-3, Block-4, Marine Drive, Clifton
Karachi-75600, Pakistan

AFFIX
CORRECT
POSTAGE
STAMPS 
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